E-ISSN e-ISSN 2667-8721 Volume: 4 Issue: 3 December 2022

EURASIAN JOURNAL O CRITICAL CARE



- 1. Prospective Analysis of Application Reasons of Alzheimer's Patients Applying to the Emergency Department Halil İbrahim Çıkrıklar, Murat Aslan, Vahide Aslıhan Durak, Serhat Atmaca, Suna Eraybar, Hakan Çelebi, Erol Armagan
- 2. Effect Of Covid-19 On Emergency Service Workers Fatma Selman, Ertuğ Gunsoy, Yesim Yigiter Şenol
- Head Trauma in Refugee Children Under The Age Of 2 Nalan Cavlak Adsiz, Ilhami Adsiz
- Predictors of In-hospital Death in Patients with Stanford Type B Acute Aortic Dissection Murat Duyan, Ali Sarıdas, Nafis Vural
- 5. Is it Possible to Predict High-Risk Patients in Acute Pulmonary Embolism with Systemic Immune-Inflammation Index? Murat Duyan, Ali Sarıdas, Nafis Vural

- Investigation of HBV, HCV, and HIV Seropositivity in Healthcare Workers of Reproductive Age Hulya Aladag
- 7. Kounis Syndrome or Adrenalin Side-Effect? Oya Güven, Meziyet Camuz, Didar Elif Akgün, Mert Avsever
- 8. Primary Spontaneous Hemopneumothorax: A Case Report Mercan Nisa Aykaç, Serdar Ergenç, Ahmet Taha Özatak, Bahadır Taslidere, Basar Cander
- 9. Complications of SARS-CoV-2 Infection in Geriatrics Abuzer Ozkan, Ibrahim Altunok
- 10. Molnupiravir, a New Antiviral Drug for the Treatment of COVID-19

Ali Saritas

Owner and Responsible Manager

Başar Cander Bezmialem Vakif University, Department of Emergency Medicine İstanbul, Turkey

Editors in Chief

Başar Cander Mehmet Gül

Editorial Board

Ilker Akbaş Bahadır Taşlıdere Yahya Kemal Günaydın Mehmet Gül Ceren Sen Tanrikulu Yavuz Katırcı Hakan Oğuztürk Behçet Al Şerife Özdinç Ayten Shixaliyeva Mehmetnuri Bozdemir Dilek Atik Cesareddin Dikmetaş Togay Evrin Şükrü Gürbüz Latif Duran Mustafa Ahmet Afacan Hüseyin Mutlu Juliusz Jakubaszko Fatima Lateef Paul D. Kivela Abdelouahab Bellou Ahmad Al Hadun Khikmat Anvarov Wei Jie Melih Ucan

Printing and Graphics Department



Ofis Adres Seyrantepe Mah. İbrahim Karaoğlanoğlu Cd. İspar İş Merkezi D: No: 105 D:124, 34418 Kâğıthane/İstanbul Tel: 0553 199 95 59 www.puntoajans.com

Owner and Responsible Manager

Başar Cander

Bezmialem Vakif University, Department of Emergency Medicine, İstanbul, Turkey

Editors in Chief

Başar Cander Bezmialem Vakif University, Department of Emergency Medicine, İstanbul, Turkey

Mehmet Gül

Necmettin Erbakan University, Department of Emergency Medicine, Konya, Turkey

Editorial Board

İlker AKBAS

Kahramanmaraş Sütçü İmam University, Department of Emergency Medicine, Kahramanmaraş, Turkey

Bahadır TAŞLIDERE

Department of Emergency Medicine, Faculty of Medicine, Bezmialem Vakif University, Istanbul, Turkey.

Bora ÇEKMEN

Karabük University Training and Research Hospital, Department of Emergency Medicine, Karabük, Turkey

Zamir Kem al ERTÜRK

Etimesgut Şehit Sait Ertürk State Hospital, Department of Emergency Medicine, Ankara, Turkey

Mehmet DOKUR

Biruni University Faculty of Medicine, Department of Emergency Medicine, İstanbul, Turkey.

Turgut DOLANBAY

Niğde Ömer Halisdemir University, Department of Emergency Medicine, Niğde, Turkey

Section Editors

Bingür Sönmez

Memorial Sisli Hospital, Department of Cardiovascular Surgery, Istanbul, Turkey

Zeynep Gökcan Çakır

Ataturk University School of Medicine, Department of Emergency Medicine, Erzurum, Turkey

Müjgan Çalışkan Evren

Medipol Mega University, Department of General Surgery, Istanbul, Turkey

Hakan Oğuztürk

Ankara City Hospial, Department of Emergency Medicine, Ankara, Turkey

Juliusz Jakubaszko

Wroclaw University of Medicine, Department of Emergency Medicine, Wroclaw, Poland

Fatima Lateef

SingHealth Duke-NUS Institute of Medical Simulation, Department of Emergency Medicine, Singapore

Yahya Kemal Günaydın

HSU Ankara Training and Research Hospital, Department of Emergency Medicine, Ankara, Turkey

Yavuz Katırcı

HSU Ankara Keçiören Training and Research Hospital, Department of Emergency Medicine, Ankara, Turkey

Havva Şahin Kavaklı

HSU Ankara Numune Training and Research Hospital, Department of Emergency Medicine, Ankara, Turkey

Behçet Al

İstanbul Medeniyet University, Department of Emergency Medicine, İstanbul, Turkey

Kadriye Yaşar Kart

Health Sciences University, Department of Infectious Diseases, Istanbul, Turkey

Işıl Yurdaışık

Istinye University, Department of Radiology, Istanbul, Turkey

Şerife Özdinç

Afyon Kocatepe University School of Medicine, Department of Emergency Medicine, Afyon, Turkey

Hilal Sipahioğlu

Medical School of Erciyes University, Department of Internal Medicine, Intensive care Unit, KAYSERI, TURKIYE

Keziban Karabulut

Baskent University School of Medicine, Department of Emergency Medicine, Ankara, Turkey

Mehtap Gürger

Fırat University School of Medicine, Department of Emergency Medicine, Elazıg, Turkey

Paul D. Kivela

American College of Emergency Physicians, Department of Emergency Medicine, Dallas, USA

Abdelouahab Bellou

Department of Emergency Medicine, Boston, USA

Ahmad Al Hadun

Department of Emergency Medicine, Jordan

Khikmat Anvarov

Republican Research Centre of Emergency Medicine, Department of Foreigin Affairs, Tashkent, Uzbekistan

Wei Jie

Wuhan University, Emergency Department & ICU and Critical Care Medicine, Wuhan, China

Contents

1.	Prospective Analysis of Application Reasons of Alzheimer's Patients Applying to the Emergency Department
2.	Effect Of Covid-19 On Emergency Service Workers
3.	Head Trauma in Refugee Children Under The Age Of 291 Nalan Cavlak Adsiz, Ilhami Adsiz
4.	Predictors of In-hospital Death in Patients with Stanford Type B Acute Aortic Dissection
5.	Is it Possible to Predict High-Risk Patients in Acute Pulmonary Embolism with Systemic Immune-Inflammation Index?
6.	Investigation of HBV, HCV, and HIV Seropositivity in Healthcare Workers of Reproductive Age
7.	Kounis Syndrome or Adrenalin Side-Effect?
8.	Primary Spontaneous Hemopneumothorax: A Case Report
9.	Complications of SARS-CoV-2 Infection in Geriatrics
10	. Molnupiravir, a New Antiviral Drug for the Treatment of COVID-19

Prospective Analysis of Application Reasons of Alzheimer's Patients Applying to the Emergency Department

^{ID} Halil İbrahim Çıkrıklar¹, ^{ID} Murat Aslan¹, ^{ID} Vahide Aslıhan Durak¹, ^{ID} Serhat Atmaca¹, ^{ID} Suna Eraybar¹, ^{ID} Hakan Çelebi¹, ^{ID} Erol Armagan¹ ¹ Department of Emergency Medicine, Bursa Uludag University Medical Faculty. Bursa, Turkey

Abstract

Background: The aim of this study is to analyze the reasons for admission of Alzheimer's patients who applied to the emergency services.

Materials and methods: The study was conducted prospectively on patients with Alzheimer's disease who applied to the emergency departments of Bursa Uludag University Health Application and Research Center, Health Sciences University Bursa Yüksek İhtisas Training and Research Hospital and Bursa City Hospital between 01.07.2021 and 01.07.2022.

Result: A total of 248 patients, 103 male (41.5%) and 145 female (58.5%), were included in the study. It was determined that the three most common diagnoses received by the patients in the emergency department were pneumonia (17.7%), ischemic cerebrovascular disease (10.3%), and urinary system infection (9.3%). It was determined that 42.7% of the patients were hospitalized in clinical and 18.1% in intensive care units.

Conclusion: As a result, it was determined that the most common diagnoses of Alzheimer's patients admitted to the emergency department were pneumonia, ischemic cerebrovascular disease and urinary tract infection, respectively and more than half of all admitted patients had indications for hospitalization.

Keywords: Alzheimer Disease, Emergency Department, Geriatric Patient.

Introduction

Alzheimer's disease (AD) is a neurodegenerative syndrome characterized by global cognitive impairment and neuropsychiatric symptoms¹. It is the most common type of dementia and accounts for 60% to 70% of all causes of dementia². Alzheimer's disease affects more than 30 million people in worldwide³.

AD follows a clinically progressive course. It begins with forgetfulness and short-term memory loss. Over time, place, time and person orientation deteriorates. The patient, whose cognitive and motor functions are impaired, becomes immobile and in need of care over time⁴. Currently, there is no treatment that cures AD or stops its progression⁵.

Emergency Departments (ED) are units where patients can quickly access medical care when needed⁶. ED applications of elderly patients with serious chronic diseases are increasing day by day⁷. AD has an important place among the patient groups⁸⁻¹⁰. The aim of this study is to investigate the most common reasons for admission and hospitalization processes of patients with AD and admitted to ED.

Material and Methods

An ethics committee report was obtained with the decision dated 02.06.2021 and numbered 2021-7/31 by appealing to Bursa Uludağ University Faculty of Medicine Clinical Research Ethics Committee within the scope of the master thesis. The research was conducted prospectively on patients with AD who applied to ED of Bursa Uludağ University Health Application and Research Center, University of Health Sciences Bursa Yüksek İhtisas Training and Research Hospital and Bursa City Hospital between 01.07.2021 and 01.07.2022.

Patients over the age of 18 who applied to the emergency medicine clinics of the health centers on the specified date and were previously diagnosed with AD were included in the study. The patients included in the study, or their relatives were informed and their consents were obtained. The data obtained were recorded in the patient file by the doctor who examined the patient.

The patients name, surname, date of application to the emergency department, hospital protocol number, age, gender, reason for applying to the emergency department, chronic diseases, how many years have been diagnosed with AD, who has been caring for the patient, number of applications to the emergency department in the last year, whether consultation is requested, patient outcome, length of stay in ED were recorded in the patient file. The interventional procedure, examination or drug administration except the routine health care was not applied to the patient.

Descriptive statics for continuous variables from the featured features are expressed as Average Standard Deviation, Minimum and Maximum values while categorical variables are expressed as numbers and percentages. Independent groups t-test was used to compare continuous variables according to categorical variables. Pearson correlation multiples were calculated to determine the relationship between these variables.

Chi-square test was used to determine the relationship between groups and categorical variables. The significance value was determined as p<0.05 for all analyses. Data were analyzed using the IBM SPSS (Version 21.0. Armonk, NY: IBM Corp.) program.

Results

248 applicants included in the study were evaluated according to gender in terms of age, duration of AD, duration of stay in ED and the number of ED applications in the last year (Table 1).

It was determined that 103(41.5%) of the applicants were male and 145 (58.5%) were female. The average age of 248 Alzheimer's patients participating in the study was calculated as 79.32 ± 9.44 (Table-1).

The average time from the diagnosis of AD to the day of admission was found as $4.58\pm$. While this period was found as 4.22 ± 3.68 in men, it was found as 4.8 ± 3.66 in females (Table-1).

The patient's average duration of stay in the ED was found as 7.93 ± 5.93 hours. It was determined that female patients stayed longer in ED (Table-1).

125 patients once, 18 patients twice, 16 patients 3 times, 7 patients 4 times, 1 patient 5 times and 1 patient 6 times applied to the ED during the study period. The average number of ED applications made by the patients in the last year was found as 3.90 ± 3.05 . When the applications of men and women were compared in the last year, it was found that men applied more frequently, and this was found to be statically significant (p=0.02)(Table-1).

According to the age groups of the patients who applied to ED; they were grouped as 65-74 young old, 76-84 old, 85 and over very old and it was showed in Table-2. The number of young old people was 50(20.1%), the number of old people was 125(50.4%) and the number of very old people was 64(25.8%). It was determined that 9 patients were under 65 years of age. The average of ED admissions in the last year were compared according to the age groups. As seen in Table-2, the frequency of applying to ED was found to increase with increasing age (p=0.05).

		Number	Mean	Standard Deviation	Min.	Max	p-Value
	Male	102	78.64	6.709	65	93	
Age	Female	145	79.81	10.960	40	99	0.339
	Total	247	79.32	9.440	40	99	
Duration of AD (year)	Male	103	4.22	3.686	1	15	
	Female	145	4.83	3.665	1	20	0.203
	Total	248	4.58	3.679	1	20	
	Male	103	7.35	5.866	1	25	
Duration of stay in ED (hours)	Female	145	8.34	5.968	1	30	0.197
	Total	248	7.93	5.934	1	30	
	Male	103	4.43	3.945	0	21	
Number of ED application in the	Female	145	3.52	2.138	0	10	0.020
	Total	248	3.90	3.048	0	21	

Table 1: Analysis of Patient's age, duration of Alzheimer's Disease, duration of staying in the Emergency Department and Emergency Service applications made in the last year according to the gender of the patients.

Significant p values are presented in bold.

AD: Alzheimer's disease, ED: Emergency Departments

Table 2: Average of Patients Over 65 Years of Admission to the Emergency Department in the Last One Year.

	Age Groups	Average application	Standard Deviation	Min.	Max	р
Emergency Service	65-74	2.90	1.854	0	7	
Applications	75-84	4.03	2.552	0	13	0.050
(1 year)	>84	4.16	4.325	0	21	

Comorbidity	Number (n)	Percentage (%)
Hypertension	155	62,5
Diabetes Mellitus	66	26,6
Coronary Artery Disease	51	20,6
Cerebrovaskuler Disease	39	15,7
Chronic Renal Failure	27	10,9
Parkinson	13	5,2
Asthma/Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease	13	5,2
Arrhythtmia	12	4,8
Malignancy	9	3,6
Congestive Heart Failure	9	3,6
Epilepsy	5	2,0
Bipolar Disorder	1	0,4
Hepatic Cirrhosis	1	0,4

 Table 3: Comorbidities of the Patients and Percentages of Existence.

When the people who took care of the patients were questioned, it was determined that 185 (74.6%) of them were cared for by their families, 34 patients (13.7%) stayed in s nursing home, 26 (10.5%) stayed at home with a nursemaid and 3 patients lived alone.

The comorbidities and percentages of the patients are given in Table-3. According to the table, the most common comorbidities in patients were hypertension (HT), diabetes, coronary artery disease, cerebro vascular disease and chronic kidney failure (CRF).

The complaints of the patients were examined (Table-4). As seen in Table-4; the most common complaints of patients were found as general condition disorder, dyspnea, fever, falling and asthenia.

The diagnoses received by the patients according to their admission complaints were evaluated as their primary diagnosis and it was showed in Table-5. According to the table, the most

Complaint	Number	Percentage (%)
General Condition Disorder	47	18,9
Dsypnea	39	15,7
Fever	35	14,1
Fall	23	9,3
Asthenia	11	4,4
Abdominal pain	9	3,6
Seizure	9	3,6
Cough	8	3,2
Oral Intake Disorder	7	2,8
Speech Disorder	6	2,4
Others	54	22

Table 4: Examination of Patients According to the ApplicationComplaints.

Table 5: Primary Diagnoses of the Patients.

Primary Diagnoses	Number	Percentage (%)
Pneumonia	44	17,7
Ischemic Cerebro Vascular Disease	25	10,3
Urinary Tract Infection	23	9,3
Coronavirus disease 2019	16	6,5
Acute Renal Failure	15	6
Femur Fracture	9	3,6
Pulmonary Embolism	7	2,8
Soft Tissue Trauma	7	2,8
Hypernatremia	6	2,4
Upper Respiratory Infection	6	2,4
Others	90	36,2
Total	248	100

common diagnoses were pneumonia (17.7%), ischemic cerebro vascular disease (10.3%), urinary tract infection (UTI) (9.3%), COVID 19 (6.5%), acute renal failure (ARF) (6%).

Clinics for which consultation was requested were investigated. The rate of patients who requested one or more consultations was 81.5%. The most frequently consulted clinics were Chest Diseases (n=81), Internal Medicine(n=66), Neurology (n=56), Infectious Diseases (n=41), Cardiology (n=27), Anesthesia and Reanimation (n=20), Orthopedics (n=16) and Neurosurgery (n=12).

The termination of ED processes of the patients was examined. According to this, while 42.7% of the patients were hospitalized in clinics, 18.1% were admitted to the intensive care unit. While 35.5% were discharged from the hospital, two patients (0.8%) died while in the ED process. 2.8% left from the ED by signing treatment rejection (Figure 1).

When the patients' hospitalized clinics are compared, the first five places are seen as Chest Diseases, Internal



ICU: Intensive Care Unit

Figure 1: End of Emergency Service Processes of Patients.



Figure 2: Distribution of Hospitalized Patients According to the Clinics

Medicine, Neurology, Infectious Diseases and Orthopedics clinics. The distribution of hospitalized patients according to clinics is schematized in Figure-2.

Discussion

The number of populations aged 65 and over is increasing globally, and there is an increase in the applications of elderly patients to the ED, which is the gateway to the hospital⁹. Diagnosis and treatment of elderly patients are difficult for ED physicians who do not receive adequate training for this condition¹⁰. Among the elderly patient groups, AD has a vital place⁸. We examined the causes, and care processes of AD cases admitted to the ED in our study.

In studies conducted on AD, It was seen that the mean age was approximately 81⁸. In our study, AD participants' mean age was 79.32 years, which was consistent with these studies.

Estrogen hormone decreases with menopause in women. It has been shown that the decrease of estrogen hormone, which is thought to reduce the risk of AD, is related to the increased incidence of AD in women¹¹. According to several studies, the prevalence of AD is higher in women than in men¹². In our study, the majority of the application (58.5%) were made by women.

Our country has limited nursing homes for Alzheimer's patients and institutional structures to support caregivers. Due to the culture of the society in which we live, the relatives of the patients consider caring for their patients a family duty¹³. It has been observed that 80-90% of care is provided by families in the United States¹⁴. On the contrary, patient care was mostly (75%) provided by their families in our study.

The number of chronic diseases increases with advancing age. In a study conducted with 72.815 patients over 64 years of age in Spain, the most common comorbidities in patients with dementia were hypertension and diabetes¹⁵. In a study

performed on 497 patients with dementia in our country, the most common chronic disease was hypertension, followed by cataracts, depression, and diabetes¹⁶. In our study, the most common comorbid disease was found to be hypertension, while other comorbidities were diabetes, coronary artery disease, cerebro vascular disease and CRF, respectively.

Gülalp et al. examined applications of 2046 patients with ED over 65 years. The authors reported that the most common complaints at presentation were falling, chest pain, dyspnea, chronic extremity pain, abdominal pain, and fever¹⁷. In another study, the most common reasons for presentation in patients with AD were impaired consciousness, fever, falling, and dyspnea¹⁸. In our study, the most common complaints were general condition disorder, dyspnea, fever, falling from the same level, and fatigue.

A study conducted in Turkey found that the rate of consultation requested was 4.5% when all ED applications were examined¹⁹. In a study performed with geriatric patients, this rate was 43.4%²⁰. In our study, which included only AD cases, the rate of patients for whom consultation was requested was 81.5%.

Logoğlu et al. examined the patients over the age of 65, and they determined that the departments for which consultation was requested most frequently were Cardiology, Internal Medicine, Chest Diseases, Neurology, and General Surgery²⁰. Bozkurt et al. showed that the departments for which consultation was requested most frequently were Cardiology, Internal Medicine, Chest Diseases, Orthopedics, and Neurology²¹. In our study, the most frequently requested clinics for consultation were determined as Chest Diseases, Internal Medicine, Neurology, Infectious Diseases and Orthopedics.

Özşaker et al. reported that geriatric patients required more hospitalization and treatment compared to younger patients, and the duration of stay in the hospital was longer²². In a study conducted with patients over the age of 65 in 2018, the hospitalization rate was found to be 15.8%²³. In a study by Wofford et al. on geriatric patients, the hospitalization rate from ED was between 32% and 46%²⁴. In our study, the hospitalization rate of AD cases admitted to ED was 60.8%.

In the study conducted on the geriatric patient group by Bedel at al, it was determined that the departments with the highest number of hospitalizations were Internal Medicine, Cardiology, Chest Diseases and Neurology²³. In our study, it was seen that the five clinics with the highest number of hospitalizations were Chest Diseases, Internal Medicine, Neurology, Infectious Diseases and Orthopedics clinics respectively.

Limitations

Although our study is multicenter and prospective, the small number of cases is one of the factors limiting our study.

Conclusion

As a result, the most common diagnoses in AD cases applying to ED were pneumonia, ischemic cerebro vascular disease and urinary system infection. Respectively, it has been determined that the frequency of applying to ED increases with age and that more than half of the patients have an indication for hospitalization. It is thought that increasing the geriatrician in hospitals will contribute positively to the diagnosis, treatment, and follow-up process of AD cases among the elderly patient groups. We hope that our study, which we think is one of the few studies in its field, can contribute to the literature. We believe that there is a need for new studies on the subject.

Conflict of Interest

No conflict of interest was declared by the authors.

Financial Disclosure

The authors declared that this study has received no financial support.

References

- Lam LCW, Leung T, Lui VWC, Leung VPY, Chiu HFK. Association between cognitive function, behavioral syndromes and two-year clinical outcome in Chinese subjects with late onset Alzheimer's disease. Int. Psychogeriatrics. 2006;18(3):517-26.
- 2. Li ZB, Lin ZJ, Li N, Yu H, Wu YL, Shen X. Evaluation of retinal and choroidal changes in patients with Alzheimer's type dementia using optical coherence tomography angiography. Int J Ophthalmol. 2021; 14(6): 860–868
- **3.** Scassellati C, Ciani M, Maj C, et al. Behavioral and Psychological Symptoms of Dementia (BPSD): Clinical Characterization and Genetic Correlates in an Italian Alzheimer's Disease Cohort. J Pers Med. 2020;10(3):90.
- Silva MVF, Loures CMG, Alves LCV, et al.Alzheimer's disease: risk factors and potentially protective measures. J Biomed Sci. 2019;26(1):33.
- Herrmann N, Chau SA, Kircanski I, Lanctôt KL. Current and emerging drug treatment options for Alzheimer's disease: a systematic review. Drugs. 2011;71(15):2031-65.
- **6.** Grief CL. Patterns of ED use and perceptions of the elderly regarding their emergency care: a synthesis of recent research. J Emerg Nurs. 2003;29(2):122-6.
- George N, Bowman J, Aaronson E, Ouchi K. Past, present, and future of palliative care in emergency medicine in the USA. Acute Med Surg. 2020;7(1):497.
- 8. Gök UH, Orak OS, Yaman AY, Enginyurt Ö. Patient Related Disease Symptoms Suffered by Individuals Providing Home

Care for Patients Diagnosed with Alzheimer's. Ankara Med J. 2018;18(4):601-11.

- **9.** Çilingiroğlu N, Demirel S. Aging and Ageism. Turkish Journal of Geriatrics. 2004;7 (4): 225-30.
- Grief CL. Patterns of ED use and perceptions of the elderly regarding their emergency care: a synthesis of recent research. J Emerg Nurs. 2003;29(2):122-6.
- Román GC, Tatemichi TK, Erkinjuntti T, et al. Vascular dementia: diagnostic criteria for research studies. Report of the NINDS-AIREN International Workshop. Neurology. 1993;43(2):250-60.
- Cankurtaran M. Evaluation of risk factors in alzheimer type and vascular type dementia. (Master Thesis). Ankara: Hacettepe University; 2004.
- **13.** Bilgili N, Kubilay G. Problems experienced by families giving care for the elderly. Health and Society. 2003;13:35-43.
- **14.** Haley WE. The family caregiver's role in Alzheimer's disease. Neurology. 1997;48(6):25-9.
- **15.** Poblador-Plou B, Calderón-Larrañaga A, Marta-Moreno J, et al. Comorbidity of dementia: a cross-sectional study of primary care older patients. BMC Psychiatry. 2014;14:84.
- **16.** Koç OS, Dokuzlar Ö, Soysal P, Işık AT. Relationship Between Dementia and Comorbid Disease The Journal of Geriatric Science. 2018;1(2):32-9.
- 17. Gülalp B, Aldinç H, Karagün Ö, Çetinel Y. The complaint and outcome of geriatric patient in emergency department. Turkish J Emergency Medicine. 2009;9(2):73-7.
- 18. Veral S. Determining the Reasons and Frequency of Emergency Department Applications of Patients with the Diagnosis Alzheimer Disease Over the Age of 65 and Comparison of the Applications of the Patients Over the Age of 65 Whom Doesn't have Alzheimer Disease (Master Thesis). Bursa: Uludağ University; 2016.
- 19. Köse A, Köse B, Öncü MR, Tuğrul F. Admission appropriateness and profile of the patients attended to a state hospital emergency department Gaziantep Medical Journal. 2011;17(2):57-62.
- **20.** Loğoğlu A. Investigation of elderly patients admited to emergency department (Master Thesis). Mersin: Mersin University; 2013.
- **21.** Bozkurt S. Characteristik of geriatric patients in emergancy depertment (Master Thesis). İzmir: Dokuz Eylül Universty; 2005.
- 22. Özşaker E, Korkmaz F, Dölek M. Analyzing individual characteristics and admission causes of elderly patients to emergency departments. Turkish Journal of Geritarics. 2011;14(2):128-34.
- 23. Bedel C, Tomruk Ö. Properties of over the age of 65 years patients presenting to Süleyman Demirel University Faculty of Medicine Imergency Department. SDU Medical Faculty Journal. 2018;25(4):393-9.
- 24. Wofford JL, Schwartz E, Timerding BL, et al. Emergency department utilization by the elderly: analysis of the National Hospital Ambulatory Medical Care Survey. Acad Emerg Med. 1996;3(7):694-9.

Original Article Eurasian Journal of Critical Care

Effect Of Covid-19 On Emergency Service Workers

Departma Selman¹, Department of medical education, Akdeniz University School of Medicine, Antalya, Turkey
 ² Van Training and Research Hospital Emergency Medicine Van/Turkey

Abstract

Introduction: Healthcare professionals have been of the fight against the pandemic, continued for more than a year. The anxiety levels of healthcare workers due to increased workload, social isolation, fear of catching COVID-19, etc. have increased significantly. The aim of this study is to determine the anxiety levels of emergency service workers who are always at the forefront of the fighting against the pandemic in Turkey.

Methods: A questionnaire containing demographic information and the questions of 2 different scales (generalized anxiety disorder-7 scale, coronavirus anxiety scale), whose validation and reliability were performed in Turkey, was delivered via the web to the emergency room workers.

Results: Personnel working in the emergency service of a tertiary state hospital, 74% were reached. On the generalized anxiety scale, 53% of the participants received a score of 11 or above (severe anxiety). While the mean values of the generalized anxiety scale in the income and education groups showed a statistically significant correlation, the anxiety mean scores of those with less than 2 years of employment were found to be statistically significantly lower, and the anxiety mean scores of those who had covid-19 during the pandemic were found to be statistically significantly higher. This was found to be related to those with high anxiety and covid-related anxiety scores not wanting to work in the emergency service.

Conclusion: As a result of the study, it was revealed emergency service workers have a high level of anxiety originating from pandemics, regardless of their seniority, age, and gender.

Keywords: Emergency, Coronavirus (COVID-19), Pandemic, Generalized Anxiety Disorder-7 (GAD-7), Coronavirus Anxiety Scale Short Form (CAS)

Introduction

Coronavirus disease 2019 (Covid-19) emerged in December 2019 as a disease that affects the whole body, especially the lungs, caused by the Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome Coronavirus 2 (SARS-CoV-2)¹. The World Health Organization (WHO) declared Covid-19 a public health problem of international concern on January 30, 2020². On March 11, 2020, the first case was seen in Turkey³. After these processes, it has caused panic due to the rapid spread of the virus and the severe course of the disease, in the world and Turkey⁴.

Both the poor prognosis of the disease and the panic in the public increased the admissions to the health institutions, the need for health services, and health expenses such as hospital beds, mechanical ventilators, and intensive care beds. When the obscurities of Covid-19 disease, the burden of disease, the panic it created, and the inability to meet the health needs came together, they have caused the healthcare workers to have too much burden, and the prolongation of this process has caused burnout and ongoing anxiety⁵.

Many studies on the cause of this anxiety in healthcare professionals have revealed the following: lack of appropriate personal protective equipment, increased workload, not being able to access sufficient information and inadequate training especially at the beginning of the covid-19 disease, delay in diagnosis and treatment in case of exposure to infection, and therefore, the thought of spreading the disease, the inability to spend quality time with his/her family and his/her environment due to both the workload and the fear of carrying the infection to his/her family, and the symptoms of burnout due to the uncertainty of the process^{6,7,8}.

The aim of our study, considering all partners around them (hospital, home, family, colleagues, in-house training, media, internet) during the covid-19 pandemic, is to reveal how the psychological states of all staff (doctor, nurse, medical secretary, cleaning or auxiliary staff, etc.) in the emergency service, who feels most of these problems and

Corresponding Author: Fatma Selman e-mail: fselman@biruni.edu.tr Received: 16.10.2022 • Revision: 18.12.2022 • Accepted: 19.12.2022 DOI: 10.55994/ejcc.1190140 ©Copyright by Emergency Physicians Association of Turkey -Available online at https://dergipark.org.tr/tr/pub/ejcc **Cite this article as:** Selman F, Gunsoy E, Senol YY. Taslidere B, Sonmez E, Karatas A, Sakin B, Kazancioglu R. Can Routine blood tests be used to predict the prognosis of covid-19 patients using antithrombotic drugs. Eurasian Journal of Critical Care. 2022;4(3): 84-90

concerns and who works at the front line in Turkey, are affected.

Material and Method

2.1 Ethical approval

Van TRH Clinical Research Ethics Committee approved this study (protocol number: 2021/03)

2.2. Sampling and data collection

The study is a cross-sectional study conducted between the dates of 02.01.2021 and 04.01.2021 among the personnel working in the emergency service of the tertiary hospital. In the sample selection, it was aimed to reach all healthcare professionals working in the Emergency Service. In the center where the study was conducted, the number of patients entering the emergency room daily is approximately 1500. The total number of staff working in the hospital emergency service is 135 people. Among the workers, 100 (74%) healthcare workers were reached.

After obtaining ethical approval for the study, an online questionnaire consisting of 27 questions was prepared to collect data via Google Forms between 02.01.2021 and 04.01.2021. The questionnaire was initially applied to 18 health employee from Akdeniz University Faculty of Medicine emergency service personnel who were health professionals and were not, and it was rearranged according to their feedback. The questionnaire link was sent to all workers via e-mail. The questionnaire time was approximately 3-5 minutes.

The data collected included the sociodemographic characteristics of the participants, the Coronavirus Anxiety Scale Short Form and the Generalized Anxiety Disorder-7 (GAD-7) scale.

Coronavirus Anxiety Scale Short Form (CAS): A brief mental health scan, CAS, was developed by Lee to identify possible causes of dysfunctional anxiety associated with the COVID-19 crisis⁹. The scale, whose validity and reliability study was conducted by Biçer et al., consists of 5 questions and one dimension, and the Cronbach Alpha reliability coefficient of the scale was calculated as 0.832¹⁰. CAS is a 5-point Likert scale. Scoring of the scale was carried out as "0" "never", "1" "Rare, less than a day or two", "2" "a few days", "3" "more than 7 days" and "4" "almost every day in the last two weeks".

Generalized Anxiety Disorder-7 (GAD-7): The GAD-7 scale, developed by Spitzer et al., 11according to DSM-IV-TR criteria, was translated into Turkish by Konkan et al. and its validity and reliability study was conducted. It is a short self-report scale that evaluates generalized anxiety disorder. It is a 7-item four-point Likert (0=none, 1=many days, 2=more than half of the days, 3=almost every day) pen-and-paper type scale, which evaluates the experiences asked in the scale items in the last 2 weeks. The total scores obtained from the scale are 5, 10, and 15 cut-off points for mild, moderate, and severe anxiety, respectively. The total score Cronbach alpha value of the GAD-7 test was found to be 0.852¹².

In the analyses, specialist physicians, general practitioners, nurses were classified as health professionals occupational group 1, and medical secretary, assistant staff (staff who transport patients to any location, help patients with their basic needs when they want them), and cleaning staff were classified as health professionals occupational group 2, according to their duties in the emergency service. In addition, considering the education they received, they were classified into 2 as associate and postgraduate degree graduates and high school graduates and below. According to the duration of their employment any hospital, those under 2 years are classified as for beginners, and those with 2 years or more as experienced personnel¹³.

2.3. Statistical analysis.

IBM® SPSS® Statistics V21 software was used for statistical analysis of the data. After determining whether the data were parametric, the data were expressed as mean \pm standard deviation (SD), median (minimum-maximum), and number (%). Kolmogorov-Smirnov test was used to evaluate the conformity of quantitative data distribution to normal distribution. The significance test of the difference between the two means and the ANOVA test was used in the analyzes. Mann-Whitney U test was used to analyze data that did not conform to normal distribution.

Results

The mean age of our participants was 33.7 (sd \pm 6.92), with 70% male and 30% female. Those who have a working period of fewer than 3 years are 30%, those who have 3 years and over are 70%. Other demographic data of the participants are given in Table 1.

The distribution of Hamilton Anxiety Scores is presented in Table 2.

When the distribution of the scores given to the Hamilton anxiety scale was examined, the highest rate was in the group with 11 and above scores with 53%. A moderately significant correlation was found between the total anxiety score and the Covid scale score. (r = .476 p: 0.001)

The reliability of the scales is given in Table 3.

While the reliability coefficient of the anxiety scale was found to be 86.3%, this value was found to be 94.5% in the Covid scale.

The distribution of the mean values obtained from the scales by the variables is given in Table 4. While the Hamilton scale mean values showed a statistically significant correlation in income and education groups, a

Table	1:	The	demograph	nic c	lata	of the	participants
-------	----	-----	-----------	-------	------	--------	--------------

	Mean (SD)	N (%)	Range
Age	33.7(st +-6,92)		23-53
Gender			
Female		30	
Male		70	
Education status			
Primary school		2	
Secondary school		3	
High school		21	
Associate Degree		6	
Bachelor's degree		53	
Master		7	
PhD graduate		8	
Profession Group			
Health vocational high school		6	
Medical secretary		13	
Assistant staff		11	
Cleaning staff		9	
Nurse		32	
General Practitioner		17	
Emergency medicine specialist		11	
Income status			
Income less than expenses		43	
Income equal to expense		29	
Income more than expenses		28	

 Table 2: Classification of the scores given to the Hamilton anxiety scale

score	Ν	%
5 and less	23	23.0
6-10	24	24,0
11 and above	53	53,0

Table 3: Distribution of Coronavirus Anxiety Scale (CAS) and

 Generalized Anxiety Disorder-7 (GAD-7)of the scales

	Number of questions	Cronbach alfa
Generalized Anxiety Disorder-7 (GAD-7)	7	86,3
Distribution of Coronavirus Anxiety Scale(CAS)	5	94,5

statistically significant correlation was observed between the occupational groups in the Covid scale.

When we look at the anxiety scores of the participants by age, the anxiety level of those under the age of 35 was **Table 4:** Distribution of mean values of Coronavirus Anxiety

 Scale (CAS) and Generalized Anxiety Disorder-7 (GAD-7)

	GAD-7		CAS	
	Mean±SD	Р	Mean±SD	Р
Gender				
Male	10,98±7,01		2,11±3,89	
Female	12,40±6,47	.347	2,0±4,24	,896
Income status				
Income less than expenses	9,13±6,65		1,97±3,85	
Income equal to expenses	12,62±5,32		1,10±2,05	
Income more than expenses	13,64±7,68	.012*	2,08±3,97	,122
Education				
High school and below	9,1±7,6		2,06±3,55	
Associate degree and above	12,73±5,98	.015	2,14±4,21	.923
Profession group				
1	13,21±6,54		,89±1,83	
2	11,35±6,06	.221	2,68±4,46	.020

Profession group 1; Medical secretary, assistant staff, cleaning staff, group 2; Health vocational high school, nurse, general practitioner, emergency medicine specialist

lower than the others. However, no statistical significance was found. (P=0.09)

It is important to spend at least 2 years to fully fit an emergency service system, to be able to work as a full professional in the emergency service. For this reason, we evaluated those who worked less than 2 years as apprentice workers and those with more than 2 years as experienced workers. Of our participants, 30% were apprentice workers and 70% were experienced workers.

Among the participants, the anxiety mean scores of those with less than 2 years of employment and of those who want to work in emergency service were found to be statistically significantly lower, and the anxiety mean scores of those who had Covid-19 during the pandemic were found to be statistically significantly higher (Table 5).

It was revealed that approximately 65% of the participants received up-to-date information about the Covid-19 pandemic from the website of the Ministry of Health. It was seen that social media (56%) followed this. The sources used by the participants in our study to obtain up-to-date information about the covid-19 pandemic are given in Table 6.

To our question "If you were set free, would you like to work in the pandemic emergency service?", 53% have answered positively. The reasons for positive respondents are that they generally like to work in the emergency service and help people, that they are committed to their profession and duty, that they learn a lot in the emergency service during the pandemic, and that they think the risk of covid is the same everywhere. The reasons for those who respond negatively to this question were stated as the higher risk of getting covid-19 in the emergency department, inability to spend free and quality time with his/her family due to

	Ν	GAD-7		CAS	
		Mean ±SD	Р	Median(IQR)	Р
Working time					
>= 2	70	12.34±6,72		0 (IQR 2.50)	
< 2	30	9.23±6,76	.037	0 (IQR 1,25)	.239
Catching COVID-19					
No	72	10.25±7,07	.006	0 (IQR 2,00)	
Yes	28	14.39±5,27		0 (IQR 7,50)	.193
Willingness to work in the Emergency department.					
No	47	14.40±6,01		1 (IQR 5,00)	
Yes	53	8.75±6,49	.001	0 (IQR 0,50)	.002

Table 5: Coronavirus Anxiety Scale (CAS) and Generalized Anxiety Disorder-7 (GAD-7) survey results according to working time, catching COVID-19, and willingness to work in the Emergency department.

 Table 6: Sources where participants get updated information on Covid-19

	N(%)
Articles and publications	45
Ministry of health website	65
Television	44
Social media	56
News web sites	40

fear of infecting his/her family and environment with the covid-19 disease, and that Covid-19 protection measures and protective equipment were not adequately provided in the emergency service and they were left alone in this regard, and that having fatigue in this long process.

Discussion

The fear caused by the Covid-19 uncertainty and intensive work since the first period of the pandemic has caused anxiety, burnout, insomnia, and fatigue in healthcare professionals who work with willingness and devotion. However, it is observed that these symptoms increase visibly with the prolongation of this period¹⁴. Many studies have been conducted to find out the reasons for this situation and find solutions. This study was planned and implemented due to a lack of studies in our country that identified these problems, particularly among emergency service workers. This study we conducted is one of the first studies in its field for our country. The results of the study show that the anxiety symptoms of emergency service workers are high.

Two types of scales were used in our study. The rate of participants who got a severe anxiety score (11 and above) according to the generalized anxiety scale-7 (GAD-7), which is one of them, is 53%. In the study conducted by Stojanov

et al., the rate of those who got severe anxiety scores on the GAD-7 scale was 38%, while the rate of participants who got severe anxiety scores in the study of Rossi et al was 19.8%^{15,16}. According to the study conducted by Rossi et al., the most important reason for it to be very high has been that they do it on all healthcare professionals who want to participate, and in our study, we only included emergency service workers15. The study of Stojanov et al. was conducted in healthcare institutions specially allocated for Covid-19. However, as their conditions are better than our hospital in terms of working conditions, workload, and patient density, in our study, there are many more healthcare workers with high anxiety scores¹⁶. The other coronavirus anxiety scale we used is newly created¹⁷. The lack of significance of the results is generally thought to be since the healthcare professionals who took part in our study are constantly in direct contact with Covid-19 positive patients, so they are less affected by news about the coronavirus included in the scale, etc.

The strengths of the study are reaching the vast majority of the workers in the emergency service where the study was conducted, the reliability tests performed well, the pilot study implementation beforehand, and the compatibility of open-ended question answers with other answers. In addition, the diversity of our participants' age, educational status, occupational group, receiving/not receiving health education, income status, etc. enabled our questionnaire to be evaluated from a broad perspective. When we looked at the anxiety scores with the responses we received from our participants, it was found that more than half of them showed severe anxiety symptoms. These results show similar characteristics to studies conducted with healthcare workers who encountered COVID-19. Similar to other studies, the risk of getting Covid-19, social isolation, intense work pace, and increased responsibilities are among the reasons for this situation18,19,20.

It has been observed in many studies that frontline healthcare workers have more intense anxiety than other healthcare workers and non-healthcare workers^{21,22,23}. This study was conducted in busy emergency service in a neighboring province, which is the regional hospital position in the application center in the surrounding provinces and districts, the average number of daily patients reaches 500-1000, where there is no system to distinguish Covid-19 patients in practice. The working of our participants at the forefront in the emergency service, having an intense working environment, contact with a patient who is constantly infected with Covid-19, and fear of getting an infection may be the reasons why their anxiety scores are higher than other studies.

When the factors affecting anxiety results are examined, there was no difference between gender and occupational groups in terms of anxiety. This result does not support other studies^{5,20}. The reasons for this difference may originate from the fact that the emergency service workers are generally male due to the cultural difference in the region where the hospital is located and therefore there are too many male participants, that the job descriptions in the occupational groups in the emergency service where the study is conducted are not clearly defined and the emergency room conditions include sudden events, so everyone, regardless of gender, is doing similar jobs, that all participants are emergency service workers and therefore they are constantly exposed to the same situations in the same indoor environment.

When the anxiety levels of participants with various educational backgrounds were compared, it was discovered that those who graduated from undergraduate and higher education levels had higher anxiety levels. Similarly, the study conducted in Wuhan draws attention to the findings. 24 As the education level increases, it may be important to have more information about the consequences, mortality, prevention methods, and treatments of viral infections, higher awareness of the precautions and treatments not taken may also be a factor as well. The reason for the increase in anxiety with the increase in income is thought to be related to the increase in the level of income as the level of education increases.

As the working times of the participants increased, their anxiety levels increased. What is expected is a decrease in the amount of anxiety since they are more experienced. However, the anxiety caused by a lack of adequate in-service training and the exhaustion of personnel with more working years due to the difficulties of emergency service conditions were at higher levels. Anxiety by age was not significant and decreased with age. In other studies, a clear result by age and years of seniority could not be reached. While some studies show that anxiety increased with age, some studies have found the opposite^{25,26}. Because of the fact that approximately 1500 patients enter the emergency room in which we conducted the study, it is included in the crowded emergency services group.27 Caring for so many patients causes healthcare professionals to have difficulty in taking covid-19 measures to protect themselves. This situation also increases the anxiety in the emergency department.

It is not possible for healthcare professionals to care for patients efficiently with a high level of anxiety. For this reason, it is necessary to reduce the anxiety levels of health workers. In order to reduce anxiety, the number of emergency service applications should be reduced, better triage should be performed, and they should be able to work under conditions where covid-19 measures can be taken.

We found that people who had a Covid-19 infection once had a high level of anxiety. We thought that the reasons for this were: having the disease again; the fear of experiencing the traumas caused by the events such as shortness of breath and fear of death in patients they have encountered in the hospital; fear of infecting family or co-workers, and likewise the fear of seeing them getting worse. It has been clearly shown in the study of Arpacioğlu et al. that the fear of secondary traumatization increases anxiety too much. 28 In addition, Jiang Du et al. have also emphasized in their study that the thought of his family, himself, and his colleagues being caught with covid-19 infection significantly increased the perception in people²⁴.

The answers to open-ended questions support our other findings, and the risk of transmitting the COVID-19 during the pandemic period, social isolation due to the fear of infecting the family and the environment, lack of personal protective equipment, extra workload added to emergency working conditions, and increased responsibilities have been stated as increasing factors. Concerning these situations, the majority of the participants stated that they do not want to work in emergency service with their own free will during the pandemic period.

More than half of our participants said that they use the ministry of health website and social media to get up-todate information on Covid-19. It is thought that they follow the Ministry of Health website as they give their daily number of cases every day and social media for current news. Nekliudov et al. and Clavier et al. have shown in their studies that the use of social media significantly increased anxiety in the Covid-19 period^{29,30}. Our participants may also be affected by this situation.

Our study has some limitations; it is not known whether the participants had psychiatric disorders before Covid-19, the correlation of this anxiety state with continuous longterm exposure could not be examined because it was a crosssectional study, and the effect of geographical differences could not be evaluated because it was a single center study. In future studies, emergency service workers can be examined on their anxiety states in their exposure to longterm cases of covid-19 and infection.

Conclusion

As a result of the study, it was revealed that emergency service workers have a high level of anxiety originating from pandemics, regardless of their seniority, age, and gender. To adjust this situation, the working conditions, hospital conditions, and social conditions of emergency service workers need to be improved.

Author Contributions

FS: Writing – original draft, Conceptualization (equal), Data curation (lead), Formal analysis

EG: Data curation, Formal analysis

YŞ: Writing – review & editing, Conceptualization (equal), Formal analysis (lead)

References

- Koronavirüs hastalığına (COVID-19) ve buna neden olan virüse isim vermek. Accessed May 1, 2021. https://www. who.int/emergencies/diseases/novel-coronavirus-2019/ technical-guidance/naming-the-coronavirus-disease-(covid-2019)-and-the-virus-that-causes-it
- WHO'nun COVID-19'a tepkisinin zaman çizelgesi. Accessed May 1, 2021. https://www.who.int/emergencies/diseases/ novel-coronavirus-2019/interactive-timeline#!
- 3. Covid19. Accessed May 2, 2021. https://covid19.saglik.gov.tr/
- Coronavirus. Accessed May 1, 2021. https://www.who.int/health-topics/coronavirus#tab=tab_3
- Danet Danet A. Psychological impact of COVID-19 pandemic in Western frontline healthcare professionals. A systematic review. *Medicina Clínica (English Edition)*. Published online March 2021. doi:10.1016/j.medcle.2020.11.003
- Shanafelt T, Ripp J, Trockel M. Understanding and Addressing Sources of Anxiety among Health Care Professionals during the COVID-19 Pandemic. JAMA - Journal of the American Medical Association. 2020;323(21):2133-2134. doi:10.1001/ jama.2020.5893
- Wang J, Zhou M, Liu F. Reasons for healthcare workers becoming infected with novel coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19) in China. *Journal of Hospital Infection*. 2020;105(1):100-101. doi:10.1016/j.jhin.2020.03.002
- Pappa S, Ntella V, Giannakas T, Giannakoulis VG, Papoutsi E, Katsaounou P. Prevalence of depression, anxiety, and insomnia among healthcare workers during the COVID-19 pandemic: A systematic review and meta-analysis. *Brain Behav Immun.* 2020;88:901-907. doi:10.1016/j.bbi.2020.05.026
- **9.** Lee SA. Coronavirus Anxiety Scale: A brief mental health screener for COVID-19 related anxiety. *Death Stud.* 2020;44(7):393-401. doi:10.1080/07481187.2020.1748481
- Koronavirüs Anksiyete Ölçeği Kısa Formu: Türkçe Geçerlik ve Güvenirlik Çalışması. doi:10.21673/anadoluklin.731092

- Spitzer RL, Kroenke K, Williams JBW, Löwe B. A brief measure for assessing generalized anxiety disorder: The GAD-7. *Arch Intern Med.* 2006;166(10):1092-1097. doi:10.1001/archinte.166.10.1092
- يولا ان يون ان يول عن يغيت رئيس قرط No Title ر ن يول ان يوز.
 2005.
- 13. Postaci ES, Uysal İ, Melek A, Koşan A, Toraman Ç. ACİL SERVİS VE YATAKLI SERVİSLERDE GÖREVLİ SAĞLIK PROFESYONELLE-RİNİN PROBLEM ÇÖZME YETENEK ALGILARININ İNCELENME-Sİ. Cilt 6-Sayı. 2021;6(1):25-36.
- 14. Lai J, Ma S, Wang Y, et al. Factors associated with mental health outcomes among health care workers exposed to coronavirus disease 2019. JAMA Netw Open. 2020;3(3). doi:10.1001/ jamanetworkopen.2020.3976
- **15.** Rossi R, Socci V, Pacitti F, et al. Mental Health Outcomes among Frontline and Second-Line Health Care Workers during the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) Pandemic in Italy. *JAMA Netw Open*. 2020;3(5). doi:10.1001/jamanetworkopen.2020.10185
- 16. Stojanov J, Malobabic M, Stanojevic G, Stevic M, Milosevic V, Stojanov A. Quality of sleep and health-related quality of life among health care professionals treating patients with coronavirus disease-19. *International Journal of Social Psychiatry*. Published online 2020. doi:10.1177/0020764020942800
- 17. Lee SA. Coronavirus Anxiety Scale: A brief mental health screener for COVID-19 related anxiety. *Death Stud.* 2020;44(7):393-401. doi:10.1080/07481187.2020.1748481
- 18. Cipolotti L, Chan E, Murphy P, van Harskamp N, Foley JA. Factors contributing to the distress, concerns, and needs of UK Neuroscience health care workers during the COVID-19 pandemic. *Psychology and Psychotherapy: Theory, Research and Practice.* Published online April 1, 2020. doi:10.1111/papt.12298
- Man MA, Toma C, Motoc NS, et al. Disease perception and coping with emotional distress during covid-19 pandemic: A survey among medical staff. *Int J Environ Res Public Health*. 2020;17(13):1-13. doi:10.3390/ijerph17134899
- 20. Elbay RY, Kurtulmuş A, Arpacıoğlu S, Karadere E. Depression, anxiety, stress levels of physicians and associated factors in Covid-19 pandemics. *Psychiatry Res.* 2020;290:113130. doi:10.1016/j.psychres.2020.113130
- 21. Stojanov J, Malobabic M, Stanojevic G, Stevic M, Milosevic V, Stojanov A. Quality of sleep and health-related quality of life among health care professionals treating patients with coronavirus disease-19. *International Journal of Social Psychiatry*. Published online 2020. doi:10.1177/0020764020942800
- **22.** Liang Y, Wu K, Zhou Y, Huang X, Zhou Y, Liu Z. Mental health in frontline medical workers during the 2019 novel coronavirus disease epidemic in China: A comparison with the general population. *Int J Environ Res Public Health*. 2020;17(18):1-12. doi:10.3390/ijerph17186550
- 23. Liu CY, Yang YZ, Zhang XM, et al. The prevalence and influencing factors in anxiety in medical workers fighting COVID-19 in China: A cross-sectional survey. *Epidemiol Infect*. 2020;148. doi:10.1017/S0950268820001107
- 24. Du J, Dong L, Wang T, et al. Psychological symptoms among frontline healthcare workers during COVID-19 outbreak in Wuhan. *Gen Hosp Psychiatry*. 2020;67:144-145. doi:10.1016/j. genhosppsych.2020.03.011

- **25.** Huang Y, Zhao N. Generalized anxiety disorder, depressive symptoms and sleep quality during COVID-19 outbreak in China: a web-based cross-sectional survey. *Psychiatry Res.* 2020;288. doi:10.1016/J.PSYCHRES.2020.112954
- 26. Dosil Santamaría M, Ozamiz-Etxebarria N, Redondo Rodríguez I, Jaureguizar Alboniga-Mayor J, Picaza Gorrotxategi M. Psychological impact of COVID-19 on a sample of Spanish health professionals. *Rev Psiquiatr Salud Ment*. 2020;14(2):106-112. doi:10.1016/J.RPSM.2020.05.004
- 27. Haldun AKOĞLU D. ACİL SERVİS KALABALIĞINA ETKİ EDEN FAKTÖRLER ve ÖNLEME YÖNTEMLERİ YURTDIŞI TECRÜBELERİ-NİN ÜLKEMİZDE UYGULANABİLİRLİĞİ. Published online 2014.
- **28.** Arpacioglu S, Gurler M, Cakiroglu S. Secondary Traumatization Outcomes and Associated Factors Among the

Health Care Workers Exposed to the COVID-19. *International Journal of Social Psychiatry*. Published online 2020. doi:10.1177/0020764020940742

- 29. Nekliudov NA, Blyuss O, Cheung KY, et al. Excessive media consumption about COVID-19 is associated with increased state anxiety: Outcomes of a large online survey in Russia. J Med Internet Res. 2020;22(9). doi:10.2196/20955
- **30.** Clavier T, Popoff B, Selim J, et al. Association of social network use with increased anxiety related to the COVID-19 pandemic in anesthesiology, intensive care, and emergency medicine teams: Cross-sectional web-based survey study. *JMIR Mhealth Uhealth*. 2020;8(9). doi:10.2196/23153

Original Article Eurasian Journal of Critical Care

Head Trauma in Refugee Children Under The Age Of 2

Nalan Cavlak Adsiz¹,
Ilhami Adsiz¹
¹ Department of Emergency Medicine, Elazığ Fethi Sekin City Hospital, Elazığ, Turkey

Abstract

Background: It was aimed to determine the rates of head trauma and admission to the emergency department in refugee children under the age of2, and laboratory findings with computed tomography (CT) imaging in the emergency.

Materials and methods: Between 01/08/2018 and 01/08/2021, 71 refugee children under the age of 2 with head trauma who applied to the Elazığ Fethi Sekin City Hospital Emergency Department were analyzed using statistical methods.

Result: 66.2% of the target group admitted to our emergency was male and 33.8% was female. Those with Glasgow Coma Scale (GCS) 15 were 39.4%, those with GCS 14 were 40.8% and those with GCS 13 were 19.7% of those with pathological CT results. Hemoglobin (Hb) levels were significantly higher in those with pathological imaging. Hematocrit (Hct) value was found to be significantly higher in hospitalized patients (p<0.05). Blood amylase levels were low in patients with pathology in their imaging (p<0.05). Aspartate aminotransferase (AST) was significantly lower in those who were observed and discharged (p<0.05).

Conclusion: Refugee children are open to all kinds of health problems. Head trauma also takes an important place in this. As in all head trauma patients, good neurological examination and GCS scoring can be used in refugee children under the age of 2 years. CT is an effective imaging method that should be used on site. Laboratory markers need more scientific publications to provide insight before observation, discharge, and hospitalization.

Keywords: Refugee children, head injury, Glasgow Coma Scale,

Introduction

In our age, the phenomenon of refugees is a serious social problem. Wars, political imbalances and financial problems in different parts of the world have forced large groups of people to become refugees. Legally, refugees are definied as those who have to flee their country of origin for wellfounded fear of persecution or serious harm, as stated in the 1951 United Nations Convention (1).

It is a predictable situation for refuguees to encounter various health problems. It is clear that children will be most affected by these problems. Refugee children are at high risk in terms of physical, developmental and behavioral health problems (2). Head trauma is also included in these problems (3).

On the other hand, when the general population is considered, head trauma is one of the most common reasons for children to apply to the emergency department (4). It is one of the most important causes of death and sequelae in the young population and especially in children under the age of 2 (5). Falls take the first place among the causes of

head trauma. This is followed by traffic accidents and sports injuries (6). It can also be a part of domestic violence (7).

Diagnosis and follow-up of traumatic brain injury (TBI) due to head trauma can be made with Glasgow Coma Scale (GCS). It is also used in different algorithms in children. Pediatric Emergency Application Network, namely PECARN is one of the most frequently used algorithms (8) (9).

The aim of this study is to detect head trauma exposure in refugee children under the age of 2 who applied to our emergency department and to monitor the clinical process.

Material and Metods

Our study is a retrospective cohort study. Approval was obtained from the non-interventional research ethics committee of Firat University. The medical records of the patients who applied to the emergency department of our hospital between 01/08/2018 and 01/08/2021 were reviewed. Refugee children under the age of 2 who presented with isolated head trauma were included in the

study. Repeated applications were excluded due to the same trauma. Information on 72 refugee children under the age of 2 who applied with isolated head trauma was obtained. Brain CT results, laboratory findings, observation follow-up forms and existing comorbidities were examined. The disease process of those who were hospitalized was observed. The clinical conditions of the patients, which were determined according to GCS, were examined. It was determined that PECARN algorithm was taken into account in most cases, but the family's request and the physician's clinical preference were also effective when making the CT scan decision. No data could be found about the education and socioeconomic status of the parents.

Statistics

Descriptive statistics of data are expressed as mean and standard deviation (SD). Differences between means were analyzed by independent sample t-test and one way analysis of variance. Tukey test was used to determine the differences between groups for one-way analysis of variance. All statistical analyzes were performed using the SPSS 22 program. Significance level was taken as p<0,005.

	Average	Median	SD
Wbc	14,33	12,30	13,78
Hb	11,39	11,50	1,83
Hct	33,68	33,40	4,74
Urea	22,34	23,00	8,72
Creatinin	0,33	0,27	0,20
AST	47,86	44,00	23,47
ALT	58,97	57,00	42,37
Amylase	24,25	21,00	13,41

According to GCS, those who were discharged from the hospital as a result of observation without CT scan, those who were discharged from the hospital with CT scan, and those with pathological findings, are summarized in Table 2. Pathological results included 2 subdural hematomas, 1 intracerebral hemorrhage, and 7 cranial bone fracture.

Demographic data are also collected in Table 2. Male gender predominates in the patients who apply. The observed patients were followed for at least 6 hours in the emergency room observation area, and no-nausea-vomiting, drowsiness, or a newly developed neurological deficit was observed. The activities and food intake of the patients were observed and they were discharged with recommendations within their current situation.

Table 2:	Demographic	Information
----------	-------------	-------------

		n	%
Gender	Male	47	66,2
	Female	24	33,8
Age	1	34	47,9
	2	37	52,1
Hospitalization	+	15	21,1
	-	56	78,9
GCS	13	14	19,7
	14	29	40,8
	15	28	39,4
Mortalite	Exitus	1	1,4
	Discharged	70	98,6
CT Diagnosis	Observation	23	32,4
	Normal	38	53,5
	Pathological	10	14,1

Table 3:

	CT Diagnosis								lospita	lizati	on
		Observation		on Normal Pathological			+		-		
		n	%	n	%	n	%	n	%	n	%
GCS	13	1	4,3	5	13,5	8	72,7	10	66,7	4	7,1
	14	0	0,0	26	70,3	3	27,3	5	33,3	24	42,9
	15	22	95,7	6	16,2	0	0,0	0	0,0	28	0,0

When Table 4 is examined, Hb,Hct and Ast values showed significant differences according to CT diagnostic groups (p<0,05). When the CT diagnostic groups were compared according to the Tukey test, the Hb values of the groups with pathology as a result of tomography were statistically significantly higher than the Hb values of the group that did not have tomography (p<0,05). On the hand, the Hct values of the group formed by those who did not undergo CT scan were statistically significantly lower than the Hct values of the other groups (p<0.05). Ast values of the group of those who did not undergo CT scan were statistically significantly lower than Ast values of the other groups (p<0.05).

When Table 5 is examined, there was a significant difference between those who were hospitalized and those who did not (p<0.05) for Hct and Amylase values. It is seen that those who are hospitalized have higher Hct values than those who do not and those who are hospitalized are lower than those who do not have Amylase values.

CT Diagnosis	Observation		Normal		Pathol	n value	
	Average	SD	Average	SD	Average	SD	p value
Wbc	17,93	23,18	12,08	4,69	14,36	4,38	,282
Hb	10,62 A	1,68	11,58 AB	1,44	12,38 B	2,70	,019*
Hct	31,08 A	4,04	34,28 B	3,48	37,08 B	6,94	,001*
Urea	24,46	10,02	21,09	8,62	22,07	5,22	,350
Creatinin	0,38	0,15	0,32	0,24	0,29	0,13	,359
AST	36,83 A	17,49	51,62 B	23,27	58,27 B	27,96	,014*
ALT	52,48	42,31	59,38	39,33	71,18	52,87	,489
Amylase	27,83	16,16	23,16	12,76	20,45	6,98	,255

Table 4:

* p<0.05 Horizontally, means that do not share capital letter are significantly different (p<0.05).

Table 5:

	-	F		n valua	
Hospitalization	Mean	SD	Mean	SD	p value
Wbc	14,06	4,67	14,40	15,36	,934
Hb	11,98	2,49	11,24	1,61	,165
Het	36,04	6,45	33,04	4,01	,029*
Urea	20,74	6,78	22,76	9,17	,430
Creatinin	0,41	0,33	0,31	0,15	,272
AST	50,80	20,12	47,07	24,39	,588
ALT	68,73	47,51	56,35	40,95	,318
Amylase	19,20	4,97	25,61	14,62	,008*

* p<0.05

Discussion

War and persecution result in massive migrations. Current estimates indicate that there are 23 million refugees in the world (10). This number is increasing day by day. The phenomenon of migration, which is an international problem in today's world, affects children more than adults. Children who have to migrate with their families and sometimes even alone, face various health problems. Along with the migration process, low socioeconomic conditions in the destination country also make children vulnerable to various health problems. Head traumas are also included in these problems.

Response to trauma and long-term prognosis in head traumas in the pediatric age group differ compared to the adult age group. According to the figures of the United States, approximately 10 out of 100,000 children die from head trauma each year (11). Approaches under 2 year of age and above show differences when evaluating pediatric

head trauma. Under 2 years of age, clinical evaluation is more difficult. Babies may be asymptomatic. The type of trauma, clinical findings of the skull or scalp, the infant's wakefulness and the response to stimuli may be indicative (12). However, the gold standard is computed tomography. It is especially important in the early diagnosis pf intracranial hemorrhages (13). However, some studies show that even in a single-shot CT, the risk of death from life-threatening cancers such as brain tumors and leukemia may increase, and that low-dose ionizing radiation that brain is exposed to in infancy may affect cognitive abilities in adulthood (14) (15). The current situation has shown that there is a need for algorithms that take into account age in children with head trauma. The most reliable of all clinical parameters is the GCS score (16).

Head trauma patients with GCS scores between 13 and 15 are included in the mild head trauma group. Since the rate of intracranial lesion detection is high in the patients with a GCS score of 13 in this group, they are included in the moderate head trauma group by some authorities (17). The risk is lower in those with a GCS score of 14, but it is high enough to justify CT scan (18). Dolanbay et al. found similar results in their study and used brain CT as the gold standard (19). There is no consensus among those with a GCS score of 15. It is necessary to determine the correct clinical parameters in patients with GCS 15 and to justify the CT scan (16).

PECARN (Pediatric Emergency Care Applied Research Network) and several other clinical decision rules have been developed. Thus, it was aimed reduce unnecessary CT use and to ensure accurate identification of patients with real head trauma (20).

In our study, GCS was taken into account in refugee children under the age of 2 with head trauma, who came within the targeted time frame, but PECARN clinical decision rules could not be fully applied to all cases. Here, the wishes of the family and the decision made by the physician according to the clinical situation came to fore. Those with an entry GCS of 15 were in the majority. (95.7%). It showed a high correlation in the detection of pathological conditions with CT scanning. It was concluded that GCS scoring was effective in the decision of CT scan and observation hospitalization process.

The hemogram and some biochemical markers taken in the emergency room of the patients who were observed and the patient groups with or without pathology after CT scan were examined. In some studies, a correlation between low neurological level of head trauma and low hemoglobin has been shown in children (21)

HB levels in our study; subdural hematoma, intracerebral hemorrhage and cranial bone fracture were significantly higher in the pathological group. As a result of the analysis in Table5, hematocrit was found to be high in the same group, that is, in the patients with pathology and hospitalization. On the other hand, the hematocit values of the observation group were significantly low. In general, hemoglobin and hematocrit values decrease in patients with bleeding. However, there are no drastic decrease in bleeding in the intracranial area. We found elevated hemoglobin and hematocrit in the group with intracranial pathology. There may be increased intracranial pressure after trauma. One study claims that perihematomal edema will continueto in crease in the first 7 to 10 days (Staykow at al. 2011). This edema can couse a pressure increase. And cerebral blood flow may be impaired. As a result, we thought that peripheral blood hemoglobin and hematocrit levels might increase in the first admission to the emergency depertment

In addition, AST values were significantly lower in patients who were discharged after the end of observation period. It was determined that the AST value secreted from many tissues, especally the liver, was low. Noted in our work. it was hoped that this finding, which did not make sense in the light of our current analyses, would from the basis for new studies. It was thought that the analysis could be remarkable in the follow-up of the blood parameters of the patients under observation. In some studies, salivary amylase levels were examined in mild head trauma and no significant correlation was found with the severity of the trauma. However, salivary amylase level in patients with isolated head trauma was significantly associated with pathological findings in CT examinations (22). In our study, on the other hand, a significantly low blood amylase level was found in patients who were hospitalized after a pathology was detected. We studied blood amylase levels at the first admission to the emergency department. Therefore, different results may have been obtained. We think that this analytical data needs to be supported by further studies.

It is possible to prevent unnecessary CT scans and reduce mortality and morbidity with detailed examination, good neurological follow-up and evaluation of concurrent laboratory data. Considering the fact that the discharge and hospitalization processes of the patients took place in the light of the determinations made in the first step, the value of the available data is understood.

Source of income: This study did not receive any funding. Statement of Interest: No conflict of interest

References

- Sibel, Ö. Z. E. L. (2020). Türkiye'deki Suriyelilerin Hukuki Statüsü. Yeditepe Üniversitesi Hukuk Fakültesi Dergisi, 17(2), 709-734.
- Kroening, A. L., & Dawson-Hahn, E. (2019). Health considerations for immigrant and refugee children. *Advances in Pediatrics*, 66, 87-110.
- **3.** Simsek, B. K. (2016). War surgery in a Turkish hospital near the border of Syria: An evaluation in terms of critical and intensive care treatment principles. *Turkish J Trauma & Emergency Surgery*.
- Sönmez, F. T., KILIÇASLAN, Ö., & YALÇIN, G. (2018). 2 Yaş Altı Çocuklarda Kafa Travmasının Değerlendirilmesinde Bilgisayarlı Tomografinin Rolü. Konuralp Medical Journal, 10(3), 294-297.
- Keenan, H. T., Runyan, D. K., Marshall, S. W., Nocera, M. A., Merten, D. F., & Sinal, S. H. (2003). A population-based study of inflicted traumatic brain injury in young children. *Jama*, 290(5), 621-626.
- KART, Y., BİLALOĞLU, E., DUMAN, L., BÜYÜKYAVUZ, B. İ., & SA-VAŞ, M. Ç. (2021). ÇOCUK CERRAHİSİ SERVİSİNDE TRAVMA NEDENİYLE TAKİP EDİLEN HASTALARIN DEĞERLENDİRİLMESİ: GERİYE YÖNELİK 5 YILLIK ÇALIŞMA. Medical Journal of Suleyman Demirel University, 28(4).
- Eismann, E. A., Theuerling, J., & Makoroff, K. L. (2022). The role of household composition of children diagnosed with abusive head trauma. *Child Abuse & Neglect*, *124*, 105481.
- Mastrangelo, M., & Midulla, F. (2017). Minor head trauma in the pediatric emergency department: decision making nodes. *Current pediatric reviews*, 13(2), 92-99.
- Easter, J. S., Bakes, K., Dhaliwal, J., Miller, M., Caruso, E., & Haukoos, J. S. (2014). Comparison of PECARN, CATCH, and CHA-LICE rules for children with minor head injury: a prospective cohort study. *Annals of emergency medicine*, 64(2), 145-152.
- Erden, K. İ. Ş. İ. (2022). ULUSLARARASI ALANDA AFGANİSTAN SORUNU: TALİBAN İKTİDARI, AFGAN MÜLTECİLER VE TÜRKİ-YE. Al Farabi Uluslararası Sosyal Bilimler Dergisi, 7(1), 39-55.
- Şimşek, O., Hiçdönmez, T., Hamamcıoğlu, M. K., Kılın-çer, C., Parsak, T., Tiryaki, M., ... & Çobanoğlu, S. (2005). Çocukluk çağı kafa travmaları: 280 olgunun retrospektif değerlendirmesi. Ulus Travma Derg, 11(4), 310-317.
- Durak, F. Pediatrik kafa travmalı hastalarda beyin bilgisayarlı tomografi endikasyonları. *Mersin Üniversitesi Sağlık Bilimleri Dergisi*, 15(Özel Sayı-1) 21. Mersin Pediatri Günleri Bildiri Kitabı), 67-72.
- 13. Osmond, M. H., Klassen, T. P., Wells, G. A., Correll, R., Jarvis, A., Joubert, G., ... & Stiell, I. G. (2010). CATCH: a clinical decision rule for the use of computed tomography in children with minor head injury. *Cmaj*, 182(4), 341-348

- Hall, P., Adami, H. O., Trichopoulos, D., Pedersen, N. L., Lagiou, P., Ekbom, A., ... & Granath, F. (2004). Effect of low doses of ionising radiation in infancy on cognitive function in adulthood: Swedish population based cohort study. *Bmj*, 328(74)
- 15. Chodick, G., Ronckers, C. M., Shalev, V., & Ron, E. (2007). Excess lifetime cancer mortality risk attributable to radiation exposure from computed tomography examinations in children. *IMAJ-RAMAT GAN-*, 9(8), 584.
- 16. BORAN, B. O., BARUT, N., AKGÜN, C., ÇELİKOĞLU, E., & BOZ-BUĞA, M. (2005). Hafif kafa travmalı olgularda bilgisayarlı tomografi endikasyonları. Ulusal travma dergisi, 3, 218-24.
- 17. Gómez, P. A., Lobato, R. D., Ortega, J. M., & De La Cruz, J. (1996). Mild head injury: differences in prognosis among patients with a Glasgow Coma Scale score of 13 to 15 and analysis of factors associated with abnormal CT findings. *British journal* of neurosurgery, 10(5), 453-460
- Nagurney, J. T., Borczuk, P., & Thomas, S. H. (1998). Elder patients with closed head trauma: a comparison with nonelder patients. *Academic emergency medicine*, 5(7), 678-684.

- 19. Dolanbay, T., Gül, H. F., Şimşek, A. T., & Aras, M. (2020). Severe traumatic brain injury cases among children younger than 24 months. *Pediatric neurosurgery*, 55(1), 12-16.
- 20. Nishijima, D. K., Yang, Z., Urbich, M., Holmes, J. F., Zwienenberg-Lee, M., Melnikow, J., & Kuppermann, N. (2015). Cost-effectiveness of the PECARN rules in children with minor head trauma. *Annals of emergency medicine*, 65(1), 72-80.
- Lee, E. P., Zhao, L. L., Hsia, S. H., Lee, J., Chan, O. W., Lin, C. Y., ... & Wu, H. P. (2020). Clinical Significance of Nadir Hemoglobin in Predicting Neurologic Outcome in Infants With Abused Head Trauma. *Frontiers in Pediatrics*, 8, 140.
- 22. Ebrahimi, M., Kakhki, B. R., Davoudpour, B., Shaye, Z. A., Zakeri, H., Mousavi, S. M., ... & Gharaee, A. M. (2022). Examining the Relationship between Salivary Amylase Level, Head Trauma Severity and CT Scan Results in Patients with Isolated Mild Head Trauma. *Bulletin of Emergency & Trauma*, 10(2), 59.

Original Article Eurasian Journal of Critical Care

Predictors of In-hospital Death in Patients with Stanford Type B Acute Aortic Dissection

DMurat Duyan¹, D Ali Sarıdas², D Nafis Vural³

Department of Emergency Medicine, Antalya Training and Research Hospital, Antalya, Turkey
 Department of Emergency Medicine, Prof. Dr. Cemil Taşçıoğlu City Hospital, Istanbul, Turkey
 Department of Emergency Medicine, Ereğli State Hospital, Konya, Turkey

Abstract

Background: Even with immediate surgical intervention, acute aortic dissection (AAD) is a cardiovascular emergency with a high mortality rate. The purpose of this study was to look at the relationship between in-hospital mortality and red cell distribution width (RDW)/lymphocyte ratio (RLR), monocyte/lymphocyte ratio (MLR), and systemic immune inflammation index (SII) in patients with type B acute aortic dissection (BAAD).

Materials and methods: 59 BAAD patients who presented to the emergency room of a tertiary hospital were included in this cross-sectional study. The predictive ability and cut-off value of biomarkers for mortality were evaluated using Receiver Operating Characteristic (ROC) analysis. The variables believed to be connected to in-hospital mortality were subjected to multiple regression analysis, and the odds ratio was calculated.

Results: The study consisted of 59 patients in total, 44 of whom (74.6%) were male. 17 of these patients died in the hospital. In terms of predicting in-hospital mortality in BAAD patients, MLR, and neutrophil/lymphocyte ratio (NLR) have excellent diagnostic power (AUC: 0.826, 0.822, respectively), while platelet/ lymphocyte ratio (PLR), RLR, and SII have acceptable diagnostic power (AUC: 0.758-0.786). Increased NLR, PLR, MLR, RLR, and SII were found to be independent predictors of in-hospital mortality in patients with BAAD (odss ratio: 9.16, 7.68, 9.33, 6, 8.57, respectively).

Conclusion: MLR, RLR, and SII are valuable parameters for estimating in-hospital mortality in adult BAAD patients. Increased NLR, PLR, MLR, RLR, and SII in BAAD patients are independent predictors of in-hospital mortality.

Keywords: RDW to lymphocyte ratio, monocyte to lymphocye ratio, acute aortic dissection type B, in-hospital death, systemic immune inflammation index.

Introduction

Even with immediate surgical intervention, acute aortic dissection (AAD) is a cardiovascular emergency with a high mortality rate¹. According to the Stanford system, aortic dissections are classified as type A or type B depending on whether or not the ascending aorta is involved². Age, hypotension/shock, history of cardiac and renal surgery, and mesenteric or myocardial ischemia are all independent risk factors for AAD mortality, per the International Registry of Acute Aortic Dissection³. Furthermore, biomarkers such as inflammation, thrombosis, and vascular injury have been investigated as potential contributors to AAD diagnosis or risk estimation tools^{4,5}.

Recent research has found that inflammatory indices like and red cel distribution width (RDW) platelet ratio (RPR), neutrophil lymphocyte ratio (NLR), platelet lymphocyte ratio (PLR), and lymphocyte monocyte ratio (LMR), which can be easily calculated from routine blood tests, can predict mortality^{6–9.} There have been no research has looked at the relationship between inflammatory biomarkers like RDW lymphocyte ratio (RLR), monocyte lymphocyte ratio (MLR), and systemic immune inflammation index (SII) and patients with AAD who have a mortal course. The relationship between mortality in Stanford Type B Acute Aortic Dissection (BAAD) patients has not been thoroughly revealed.

The purpose of this study was to look at the relationship between in-hospital mortality and RLR, MLR, and SII in patients with type B acute aortic dissection (BAAD).

Materials and Methods

This cross-sectional study included 59 BAAD patients who presented to a tertiary hospital emergency department between April 18, 2020 and April 18, 2022. The local ethics committee approved the study and waived the requirement for informed consent (protocol code:120, decision no:120, issue:E-48670771-514.99 date:18 April 2022). The current study was carried out in accordance with the Helsinki Declaration.

Corresponding Author: Murat Duyan e-mail: drmuratduyan@gmail.com Received: 22.10.2022 • Revision: 11.11.2022 • Accepted: 14.11.2022 DOI: 10.55994/ejcc.1193021 ©Copyright by Emergency Physicians Association of Turkey -Available online at https://dergipark.org.tr/tr/pub/ejcc **Cite this article as:** Duyan M, Sarıdas A, Vural N. Predictors of In-hospital Death in Patients with Stanford Type B Acute Aortic Dissection. Eurasian Journal of Critical Care. 2022;4(3): 96-100

Post-study power analysis

According to the cross-sectional study design, the NLR value, which is the main outcome variable, was used to determine the reliability assessment (post-study power) of the number of patients included in the groups. While NLR was 9.37 ± 5.79 in-hospital deaths, it was 5.39 ± 2.78 in survivors. According to the difference in NLR levels between the independent group averages, the post-study power was 94.47%. According to the difference in the secondary outcome variables PLR, MLR, RLR, and SII, the post-study power was above 80%.

Study Protocol

Following ethical committee approval, data from the hospital's data network were analyzed retrospectively. The diagnosis of BAAD was confirmed by aortic angiography with multi-detector computed tomography (CT) scanning. Patients over the age of 18 who were diagnosed with BAAD inside of 24 hours of onset were included in the investigation. Patients who had missing clinical, laboratory, or radiographic data, were pregnant, had peripheral vascular disease, heart failure, hematologic disease, or liver disease, were on anticoagulants or steroids, had other acute or chronic infections, or had a history of aortic dissection were excluded from the study. BAAD patients were split into two groups: those who died in the hospital and those who survived. Demographic data of the groups (gender, age, etc.) and laboratory findings obtained at the first admission to the emergency department were recorded. The cardiovascular surgeons at our hospital determined the patients' treatment approach (the reason for and strategy of surgical techniques).

Laboratory analyses

The complete blood count (CBC) was measured with an automated hematological analyser. Hematological parameters white blood cell (WBC), neutrophil (NEU), lymphocyte (LYM), monocyte (MON), platelet (PLT), RDW, NLR, PLR, MLR, SII, and RLR values were recorded.

Primary purpose

To assess the predictive value of RLR, MLR, and SII in BAAD patients.

Statistical analysis

Parametric tests were used without the normality test due to the compatibility of the Central Limit Theorem10. The mean and standard deviation, as well as the minimum and maximum values of the features, were used in the data analysis while performing continuous data statistics. Categorical variables were defined using frequency and percentage values. The student's t-test was used to compare the means of two independent groups. Chi-square test statistics were used to examine the relationships among categorical variables. The cut-off in diagnostic value measurements was ascertained using Receiver Operating Characteristic (ROC) analysis. The statistics of specificity, sensitivity, positive predictive value (PPV), and negative predictive value (NPV) were used to determine statistical significance. An AUC of 0.5 to 0.6 was interpreted as poor, 0.6 to 0.7 as fair, 0.7 to 0.8 as acceptable, 0.8 to 0.9 as excellent, and greater than 0.9 as outstanding. The variables believed to be linked to in-hospital mortality were subjected to multiple regression analysis, and the odds ratio was calculated. The level of statistical significance of the data is considered p<0.05. The www.e-picos.com New York software and the MedCalc statistical package program were used to analyze the data.

Results

A total of 59 patients with type B AAD were included in this study, 44 of whom (74.6) were male. The average age of the patients was 63.2 ± 13.3 years. The in-hospital mortality rate was 29% (17 of 59 patients). Table 1 shows the mean values of all patients' laboratory results in detail. While there was no significant difference in PLT, HGB, HTC, RDW, NEU, and MON group averages (p>0.05), there was a significant difference in LYM, NLR, PLR, MLR, SII, and RLR group averages (p0.05) (table 1).

In Table 2, the diagnostic accuracy of prognostic parameters used to predict type B AAD related in-hospital mortality in ROC analysis is given in detail (table 2, figure 1).

In predicting in-hospital mortality in patients with BAAD, MLR and NLR have excellent diagnostic power (AUC: 0.826, 0.822, respectively), while PLR, RLR and SII have acceptable diagnostic power (AUC: 0.758-0.786).

When the probability ratio of the variables thought to be associated with in-hospital mortality was evaluated; Increased NLR, PLR, MLR, RLR and SII were found to be independent predictors of in-hospital mortality in BAD (Odss ratio: 9.16, 7.68, 9.33, 6, 8.57, respectively) (P < 0.05) (Table 3).

Discussion

Emergency physicians are constantly on the lookout for non-invasive, dependable, and easily accessible tools to detect life-threatening conditions in patients. This study showed that MLR, RLR and SII are valuable parameters in predicting in-hospital mortality in adult patients with BAAD in the emergency department. Furthermore, inhospital mortality was found to be high in patients with high MLR, RLR, and SII at admission. This is the first study in the literature, as far as we know. These results indicate that MLR, RLR, and SII may be used as biomarkers in future BAAD risk classifications.

BAAD is responsible for roughly one-third of all AAD cases. Predicting the prognosis of each BAAD patient is difficult due to the variety of clinical features of

		Total (n=59)	Survivors (n=42)	In-hospital death (n=17)	P-value	
Features		x ±SD		⊼±SD		
Age		63.2±13.3	63.2±13.8	63.1±12.2	0.97	
PLT (10 ³ mcL)		328.39±62.08	300±57.93	324.41±73.11	0.76	
HGB (g/L)		12.95±2.29	13.02±2.43	12.8±1.96	0.74	
HTC (%)		39.11±6.31	39.23±6.59	38.8±5.73	0.81	
RDW (fL)		14.39±1.71	14.38±1.79	14.42±1.52	0.95	
NEU (10 ³ mcL)		8.5±3.42	8.39±3.76	8.77±2.51	0.71	
LYM (10 ³ mcL)		1.53±0.62	1.71±0.61	1.09±0.39	<0.001	
MON (10 ³ mcL)		0.58±0.19	0.57±0.15	0.61±0.26	0.65	
NLR		6.53±4.25	5.39±2.78	9.37±5.79	0.01	
PLR		253.49±133.22	214.17±73.86	350.67±190.44	0.01	
MLR		0.43±0.17	0.36±0.12	0.58±0.19	<0.001	
RLR		11.79±8.94	9.67±4.06	17.01±14.39	0.05	
SII(PLT*NLR)		2106.23±1221.53	1763.14±956.76	2953.85±14.11	0.004	
		n(%)	n(%)	n(%)		
Gender	Female	15 (25.4)	12 (28.6)	3 (17.6)	0.38	-
	Male	44 (74.6)	30 (71.4)	14 (82.4)		

Table	1:	Comparison	of	clinical	l characteristics	of 1	the	stud	уp	opu	lation
-------	----	------------	----	----------	-------------------	------	-----	------	----	-----	--------

Student's t-test, Chi-Square test (p<0.05 significance)

PLT: Platelets, HGB: Hemoglobin, HCT: Hematocrit, RDW: Red Cell Distribution Width, NEU: Neutrophil, LYM: lymphocyte, MON: monocyte, NLR: neutrophil to lymphocyte ratio, PLR: platelet to lymphocyte ratio, MLR: monocyte to lymphocyte ratio, RLR: RDW to lymphocyte ratio, SII: Systemic immune-inflammation index

BAAD¹¹. Recent research has revealed that inflammation plays a prominent role in aortic dissection. Lymphocytes, macrophages, and neutrophils contribute to the apoptosis of smooth muscle cells in the aortic artery and ultimately lead to medial degradation. This is widely accepted as the fundamental mechanism of aortic dissection⁵.

Nunez et al. discovered a link between lower lymphocyte counts and higher monocyte counts and poorer cardiovascular outcomes¹². Lin et al. found that LMR with a cut-off value of 1.43 (around 0.7 AUC) in patients with type A AAD (AAAD) could predict in-hospital mortality⁴. Chen et al. found an AUC of 0.575 and a cut-off value of

1.435 for LMR in predicting 30-day mortality (sensitivity 49%, specificity 64%)¹³. Our study found that an equivalent of LMR, MLR, is an independent predictor of mortality.

Variability in circulating erythrocyte size, as measured by red cell distribution width (RDW), is a risk factor for cardiovascular mortality. RDW indicates an underlying inflammatory condition leading to impaired erythrocyte maturation¹⁴. RLR is a new biomarker. Wu et al. demonstrated high sensitivity and specificity of RLR in predicting hepatic impairment in patients with hepatitis E virüs¹⁵. Moreover, RLR was shown to have acceptable diagnostic power in the detection of acute appendicitis in pediatric patients¹⁶. RLR

Table 2: Diagnostic accuracy of prognostic parameters to predict type B AAD related in-hospital mortality with the best predictive cut-offs.

	AUC	Cut-off	Sensitivity %	Specificity%	AUC 95% CI	Р	PPV %	NPV%
NLR	0.82	>6.32	76.47	78.57	0.70-0.91	< 0.001	59.1	89.2
PLR	0.77	>241.38	70.6	78.6	0.65-0.87	< 0.001	57.1	86.8
MLR	0.83	>0.44	82.35	73.81	0.71-0.91	< 0.001	56	91.2
RLR	0.76	>10.72	70.59	71.43	0.63-0.86	< 0.001	50	85.7
SII(PLT*NLR)	0.78	>2579.85	58.82	88.10	0.65-0.87	< 0.001	64.3	82.2

AUC, Area under curve; SE, Standard error; PPV, positive predictive value; NPV, negative predictive value; CI, confidence interval;

NLR: neutrophil to lymphocyte ratio, PLR: platelet to lymphocyte ratio, RDW: Red Cell Distribution Width, RLR: RDW to lymphocyte ratio, MLR: monocyte to lymphocyte ratio, PLT: Platelet, SII: Systemic immune-inflammation index

Table 3: Multiple regression analysis of risk factors affecting

 in-hospital mortality associated with type B AAD

Variables	Odds ratio	95% CI	P-value
NLR	9.16	2.46-34.11	0.001
PLR	7.68	2.17-7.13	0.002
MLR	9.33	2.3-37.94	0.002
RLR	6	1.74-20.73	0.005
SII(PLT*NLR)	8.57	2.35-31.33	0.001

CI: confidence interval, NLR: neutrophil to lymphocyte ratio,

PLR: platelet to lymphocyte ratio, MLR: monocyte to lymphocyte ratio,

RLR: Red Cell Distribution Width (RDW) to lymphocyte ratio,

SII: Systemic immune-inflammation index, PLT: Platelet

was found to be an independent predictor of mortality in BAAD patients in our study.

SII is a new inflammatory index that comprehensively reflects the host immune and inflammatory state balance¹⁷. It has even been proposed that SII is more useful than NLR and PLR alone in predicting inflammatory status and prognosis in a variety of clinical scenarios¹⁸. A high SII score has been linked to poor outcomes in cancer patients, heart failure, and coronary artery disease¹⁹. Therefore, we thought that patients with BAAD might show a similarly poor prognosis. In the light of our study results, we can conclude that SII is a new predictor of mortality in BAAD.

In cases of increased inflammation, the neutrophil count increases rapidly, while the lymphocyte count decreases, thus significantly increasing NLR. In patients with AAAD, Karakoyun et al. showed a specificity of 74%, and a sensitivity of 77% for the prediction of in-hospital mortality with an NLR value >8.51 (AUC: 0.829)²⁰. Bedel et al. observed that a cut-off point of 9.74 (AUC 0.746) accurately predicted inhospital mortality in type AAAD with 70.6 percent sensitivity and 76.8 percent specificity in AAAD²¹. When compared to the AAAD literature, NLR had a higher predictive power of mortality (AUC: 0.822) in BAAD, with a lower cut-off value (6.32).

PLR has been linked to the magnitude of inflammation in recent studies²². In the study of Du et al. in patients with BAAD, both elevated and decreased PLRs were independently associated with in-hospital mortality²³. Contrary to this study, in the logistic regression analysis performed by Li et al in patients with BAAD, PLR was an independent predictor of all-cause mortality (hazard ratio 6.14, 95% CI:1.401-26.895, P: 0.02). PLR 9.16 (CI: 2.46-34.11, P: 0.001) predicted mortality with odds ratio in our study.

Limitations

Our study has several limitations. This is a single-center retrospective study. We used the laboratory results of the first application for analysis and could not include followup values. Serial follow-up of these indices we studied can also predict mortality. Therefore, our findings cannot be generalized but may be informative and supportive for future studies for more reliable and conclusive results.

Conclusion

MLR, RLR, and SII are valuable parameters in predicting inhospital mortality in adult patients with BAAD. In patients with BAAD, increased NLR, PLR, MLR, RLR, and SII are independent predictors of in-hospital mortality.

Ethics Committee Approval: The local ethics committee approved the study and waived the requirement for informed consent (protocol code:120, decision no: 120, issue: E-48670771-514.99 date: 18 April 2022). The current study was carried out in accordance with the Helsinki Declaration.

References

- Kalkan ME, Kalkan AK, Gündes A, et al. Neutrophil to lymphocyte ratio: a novel marker for predicting hospital mortality of patients with acute type A aortic dissection. *Perfusion*. 2017;32(4):321-327. doi:10.1177/0267659115590625
- Nienaber CA, Clough RE. Management of acute aortic dissection. *Lancet*. 2015;385(9970):800-811. doi:10.1016/S0140-6736(14)61005-9
- Rampoldi V, Trimarchi S, Eagle KA, et al. Simple risk models to predict surgical mortality in acute type A aortic dissection: the International Registry of Acute Aortic Dissection score. *Ann Thorac Surg.* 2007;83(1):55-61. doi:10.1016/J.ATHORACSUR.2006.08.007
- Lin Y, Peng Y, Chen Y, et al. Association of lymphocyte to monocyte ratio and risk of in-hospital mortality in patients with acute type A aortic dissection. *Biomark Med.* 2019;13(15):1263-1272. doi:10.2217/BMM-2018-0423/AS-SET/IMAGES/LARGE/FIGURE4.JPEG
- Del Porto F, Proietta M, Tritapepe L, et al. Inflammation and immune response in acute aortic dissection. *https://doi. org/103109/078538902010518156*. 2010;42(8):622-629. doi:1 0.3109/07853890.2010.518156
- Ren Y, Huang S, Li Q, et al. Prognostic factors and prediction models for acute aortic dissection: a systematic review. *BMJ Open*. 2021;11(2). doi:10.1136/BMJOPEN-2020-042435
- Kose N, Akin F, Yildirim T, Ergun G, Altun I. The association between the lymphocyte-to-monocyte ratio and coronary artery disease severity in patients with stable coronary artery disease. *Eur Rev Med Pharmacol Sci.* 2019;23(6):2570-2575. doi:10.26355/EURREV_201903_17406
- Sbarouni E, Georgiadou P, Kosmas E, Analitis A, Voudris V. Platelet to lymphocyte ratio in acute aortic dissection. *J Clin Lab Anal*. 2018;32(7). doi:10.1002/JCLA.22447
- 9. Öz K, Iyigun T, Karaman Z, et al. Prognostic Value of Neutrophil to Lymphocyte Ratio and Risk Factors for Mortality in Patients with Stanford Type A Aortic Dissection. *Heart Surg Forum*. 2017;20(3):E119-E123. doi:10.1532/HSF.1736

- **10.** Norman G. Likert scales, levels of measurement and the "laws" of statistics. *Adv Health Sci Educ Theory Pract*. 2010;15(5):625-632. doi:10.1007/S10459-010-9222-Y
- **11.** Zhang J, Cheng B, Yang M, et al. Predicting in-hospital death in patients with type B acute aortic dissection. *Medicine (Baltimore)*. 2019;98(32). doi:10.1097/MD.000000000016462
- Nunez J, Minana G, Bodi V, et al. Low lymphocyte count and cardiovascular diseases. *Curr Med Chem*. 2011;18(21):3226-3233. doi:10.2174/092986711796391633
- 13. Chen Y, Lin Y, Zhang H, Peng Y, Li S, Huang X. Relationship of Platelet Counts and Inflammatory Markers to 30-Day Mortality Risk in Patients with Acute Type A Aortic Dissection. *Biomed Res Int*. 2020;2020. doi:10.1155/2020/1057496
- 14. Perlstein TS, Weuve J, Pfeffer MA, Beckman JA. Red blood cell distribution width and mortality risk in a community-based prospective cohort: NHANES III: RDW and mortality risk. *Arch Intern Med*. 2009;169(6):588. doi:10.1001/ARCHINTERN-MED.2009.55
- 15. Wu J, Zhang X, Liu H, Guo N, Pan Q, Wang Y. RDW, NLR and RLR in predicting liver failure and prognosis in patients with hepatitis E virus infection. *Clin Biochem*. 2019;63:24-31. doi:10.1016/J.CLINBIOCHEM.2018.11.012
- **16.** Duyan M, Vural N. Diagnostic value of monocyte-lymphocyte ratio and red cell distribution width- lymphocyte ratio against other biomarkers in children with acute appendicitis, cross-sectional study. *Trop Doct*. 2022;52(4):510-514. doi:10.1177/00494755221122489
- 17. Li S, Liu K, Gao Y, et al. Prognostic value of systemic immune– inflammation index in acute/subacute patients with cerebral

venous sinus thrombosis. *Stroke Vasc Neurol*. 2020;5(4):368. doi:10.1136/SVN-2020-000362

- 18. Yang YL, Wu CH, Hsu PF, et al. Systemic immune-inflammation index (SII) predicted clinical outcome in patients with coronary artery disease. *Eur J Clin Invest*. 2020;50(5). doi:10.1111/ ECI.13230
- 19. Yaşar E, Bayramoğlu A. Systemic Immune-Inflammation Index as a Predictor of Microvascular Dysfunction in Patients With Cardiac Syndrome X. *Angiology*. Published online April 10, 2022. doi:10.1177/00033197221087777
- 20. Karakoyun S, Gürsoy MO, Akgün T, et al. Neutrophilen–Lymphozyten-Verhältnis als möglicher Prädiktor der stationären Mortalität bei Aortendissektion Typ A. *Herz*. 2015;40(4):716-721. doi:10.1007/S00059-014-4121-2/FIGURES/4
- 21. Bedel C, Selvi F. Association of Platelet to Lymphocyte and Neutrophil to Lymphocyte Ratios with In-Hospital Mortality in Patients with Type A Acute Aortic Dissection. *Brazilian J Cardiovasc Surg.* 2019;34(6):694. doi:10.21470/1678-9741-2018-0343
- 22. Qin B, Ma N, Tang Q, et al. Neutrophil to lymphocyte ratio (NLR) and platelet to lymphocyte ratio (PLR) were useful markers in assessment of inflammatory response and disease activity in SLE patients. *Mod Rheumatol*. 2016;26(3):372-376. do i:10.3109/14397595.2015.1091136
- **23.** Du R, Li D, Yu J, et al. Association of platelet to lymphocyte ratio and risk of in-hospital mortality in patients with type B acute aortic dissection. *Am J Emerg Med*. 2017;35(2):368-370. doi:10.1016/J.AJEM.2016.11.003.

Is it Possible to Predict High-Risk Patients in Acute Pulmonary Embolism with Systemic Immune-Inflammation Index?

Murat Duyan¹, D Ali Sarıdas², Nafis Vural³

- ¹ Department of Emergency Medicine, Antalya Training and Research Hospital, Antalya, Turkey
- ²Department of Emergency Medicine, Prof. Dr. Cemil Taşçıoğlu City Hospital, Istanbul, Turkey
- ³ Department of Emergency Medicine, Ereğli State Hospital, Konya, Turkey

Abstract

Background: Acute pulmonary embolism (APE) is a cardiovascular emergency that has a high morbidity and mortality probability. The aim of this study is to investigate the clinical value of SII in predicting high-risk patients admitted to the emergency department with a diagnosis of Acute pulmonary embolism (APE)

Materials and methods: This clinical study, which was conducted according to a cross-sectional study design, included 193 patients diagnosed with APE who presented to the emergency department of a tertiary hospital. According to the guideline, patients with Pulmonary Embolism Severity Index (PESI) class III–V or sPESI ≥I were identified as high risk. ROC (Area Under the Curve) analysis was used to determine the cut-off in predicting high-risk APE.

Result: In our research, 71 of the patients had high-risk APE. In detecting high-risk APE, the systemic immune inflammation index (SII) was found to have excellent diagnostic power (AUC: 0.84), while neutrophil to lymphocyte ratio (NLR), platelet to lymphocyte ratio (PLR), and monocyte to lymphocyte (MLR) were found to have acceptable diagnostic power (AUC: 0.76-0.78), red cell distribution width (RDW) to lymphocyte (RLR) was of fair diagnostic power (AUC: 0.68).

Conclusion: We have shown that SII can be a valuable and useful potential biomarker to identify high-risk patients in patients with APE. We also found that MLR and RLR are biomarkers that can be used to predict severe APE.

Keywords: Acute pulmonary embolism, the severity of pulmonary embolism, systemic immune inflammation index, monocyte to lymphocyte ratio, RDW to lymphocyte ratio.

Introduction

Acute pulmonary embolism (APE) is a cardiovascular emergency that has a high morbidity and mortality probability^{1,2}. Early detection, accurate diagnosis, and treatment are crucial for reducing the high mortality rate in these patients. Many diagnostic tests and risk scoring are used for this purpose^{1,3}. Blood pressure, biomarker evidence of right ventricular (RV) ischemia, lower extremity venous doppler ultrasonography, echocardiographic evidence of RV overload, computed tomography pulmonary angiography, pulmonary embolism severity index (PESI), and the simplified form of PESI (sPESI) are typically used to risk classifying patients^{1,4–6}. But these remain both costly and cumbersome for quick decision making⁷.

The pathogenesis of venous thromboembolism has been linked to inflammation markers like IL-6, IL-8, and monocyte chemotactic protein, according to a metaanalysis⁸. APE exhibits elevated levels of pro-inflammatory and pro-coagulant factors produced by platelets and leukocytes⁹. Platelet activation and neutrophil count rise as a result of this acute inflammatory response¹⁰. However, as the disease develops, the lymphocyte count decreases in response to the release of adrenaline and glucocorticoids by a sympathetic response¹¹. Studies have demonstrated the importance of inflammatory indices in predicting prognosis in pulmonary embolism, including neutrophil to lymphocyte ratio (NLR), lymphocyte to monocyte ratio (LMR), platelet to lymphocyte ratio (PLR), mean platelet volume to platelet ratio (MPR), red cell distribution width (RDW) to platelet ratio (RPR), and RDW^{12–15}.

A new systemic inflammatory index relying on neutrophil, platelet, and lymphocyte counts, the systemic immune inflammation index (SII) (PLT*NLR), has been widely used to predict clinical outcomes in cancer patients^{16–18}.

The relationship between SII and pulmonary embolism severity in APE patients has not been fully elucidated. The purpose of this study is to look into the clinical utility of SII in predicting high-risk patients presented to the emergency department with APE.

Materials and Methods

This clinical study, which was conducted according to a cross-sectional study design, included 193 patients diagnosed with APE who presented to the emergency department of

Corresponding Author: Murat Duyan e-mail: drmuratduyan@gmail.com Received: 23.10.2022 • Revision: 11.11.2022 • Accepted: 14.11.2022 DOI: 10.55994/ejcc.1193320 ©Copyright by Emergency Physicians Association of Turkey -Available online at https://dergipark.org.tr/tr/pub/ejcc **Cite this article as:** Duyan M, Sarıdas A, Vural N. Is it Possible to Predict High-Risk Patients in Acute Pulmonary Embolism with Systemic Immune-Inflammation Index?. Eurasian Journal of Critical Care. 2022;4(3): 101-105

a tertiary hospital between April 18, 2020, and April 18, 2022. The study was approved by Local Ethics Commission (protocol code:121, decision no:121, issue: E-48670771-514.99 date: 18 April 2022). The institutional review board waived informed consent to conduct this retrospective study. The current study was carried out in accordance with the Helsinki Declaration.

Post-study power analysis

According to the cross-sectional study design, the NLR value, which is the main outcome variable, was used to determine the reliability assessment (post-study power) of the number of patients included in the groups. While NLR was 9.58±7.24 high-risk APE, it was 5.12±3.04 in non-high-risk APE. According to the difference in NLR levels between the independent group averages, the post-study power was 99.85%. According to the difference in the secondary outcome variables PLR, MLR, RLR, and SII, the post-study power was above 80%.

Study Protocol

After obtaining ethics committee approval, the data were retrospectively analyzed from the hospital's data network. In the study, patients upwards of 18 years old with an APE diagnosis confirmed by multidetector computed tomography (CT) pulmonary angiography scanning were enrolled. Patients with missing clinical, laboratory, or radiographic data, pregnant patients, patients with peripheral vascular disease, malignancy, heart failure, hematological disease or liver disease, using anticoagulants or steroids, using immunosuppressive drugs, patients with other acute or chronic infections, and patients underneath the age of 18 were all excluded from the study. Venous peripheral blood samples were obtained from each patient at the time of attendance to the emergency department in order to measure SII and other common laboratory parameters. According to the guideline, patients with PESI class III–V or sPESI \geq I were identified as high risk¹.

Laboratory analyses

The complete blood count (CBC) was measured with an automated hematological analyser. Hematological parameters WBC, NEU (neutrophil), LYM (lymphocyte), MON (monocyte), platelet (PLT), RDW, NLR, PLR, monocyte to lymphocyte (MLR), red cell distribution width (RDW) to lymphocyte (RLR), and SII (PLT×NLR) values were recorded.

Primary Purpose

To assess SII's usefulness in predicting high-risk APE.

Statistical analysis

Parametric tests were used without the normality test due to compliance with the Central Limit Theorem¹⁹. In the assessing the data, while the mean and standard deviation

are used while making the data statistics in the continuous variables; frequency and percentage values were used to define categorical variables. The student's t-test was used to compare the means of two independent groups. Chi-square test statistics were used to examine the relationships among categorical variables. ROC (Area Under the Curve) analysis was used to determine the cut-off in predicting high-risk APE. The statistics of specificity, sensitivity, positive predictive value , and negative predictive value were used to determine statistical significance. An AUC of 0.5 to 0.6 was interpreted as poor, 0.6 to 0.7 as fair, 0.7 to 0.8 as acceptable, 0.8 to 0.9 as excellent, and greater than 0.9 as outstanding. The level of statistical significance of the data is considered p<0.05. The www.e-picos.com New York software and the MedCalc statistical package program were used to analyze the data.

Results

A total of 195 patients, 71 of whom were high-risk APE, were enrolled in this clinical study. 121 (62.7%) of the patients were male. Table 1 shows the mean and standard deviation values of the studied biomarkers, gender, age, and mortality status. There was a significant difference between the groups in terms of age, PLT, NEU, LYM, MON, NLR, PLR, MLR, RLR, SII, Troponin T, D-Dimer, gender, and mortality (p<0.05). HGB, There was no significant difference between the groups regarding the mean of HCT and RDW values (p>0.05) (table 1).

In Table 2, the diagnostic accuracy of biomarkers that are important in detecting high-risk APE patients in ROC analysis is given in detail (table 2, figure 1). In detecting high-risk APE, the SII was found to have excellent diagnostic power (AUC: 0.84), while NLR, PLR, and MLR were found to have acceptable diagnostic power (AUC: 0.76-0.78). RLR was of fair diagnostic power (AUC: 0.68).

Discussion

Emergency physicians are always looking for a non-invasive, reliable and easily accessible tool to detect life-threatening conditions in patients. In this study, we investigated the value of SII in predicting high-risk patients in APE in patients with APE. We discovered that SII, a simple, inexpensive, easily accessible, and immediately calculated parameter, has excellent diagnostic power in detecting high-risk patients in APE patients, with an optimal cut-off value of >1235.35. Moreover, this is the first research to suggest that MLR and RLR can be used as biomarkers to detect high-risk individuals in APE patients.

The systemic immune-inflammation index (SII), a brandnew inflammatory index, fully illustrates the balance between the host's immune and inflammatory states. The following definition was given for it: platelet count ×neutrophil count/ lymphocyte count²⁰. Recent studies have shown that SII is

		Total (n=193)	Non-high-risk APE (n=122)	High-risk APE (n=71)	
Features		x ±SD	⊼±SD	⊼±SD	p-value
Age		63.1 ±16. 7	59.6±16.5	69.1±15.5	< 0.001
PLT (10 ³ mcL)		256.32±74.21	234.69±63.28	293.48±77.26	< 0.001
HGB (g/L)		12.51±1.62	12.51±1.53	12.52±1.76	0.99
HCT (%)		37.15±5.37	36.85±4.82	37.66±6.2	0.34
RDW (fL)		15.02±9.16	14.25±1.4	16.33±14.96	0.25
NEU (10 ³ mcL)		9.19±3.2	8.09±2.75	11.07±3.07	< 0.001
LYM (10 ³ mcL)		1.72±0.71	1.89±0.76	1.43±0.49	< 0.001
MON (10 ³ mcL)		0.71±0.34	0.63±0.26	0.85±0.41	< 0.001
NLR		6.76±5.44	5.12±3.04	9.58±7.24	< 0.001
PLR		183.49±152.33	142.99±65.61	253.07±220.08	< 0.001
MLR		0.51±0.45	0.37±0.2	0.75±0.68	< 0.001
RLR		10.91±9.2	8.86±3.81	14.43±10.51	0.03
SII(PLT*NLR)		1799.99±1615.72	1194.69±803.88	2840.08±2287.97	< 0.001
Troponin		26.64±19.91	18.29±16.84	40.98±34.01	< 0.001
D-Dimer		2.94±1.8	2.68±1.57	3.39±2.08	0.01
		n(%)	n(%)	n(%)	
Gender	Female	72(37.3)	55(45.1)	17(23.9)	0.002
	Male	121(62.7)	67(54.9)	54(76.1)	
Mortality	No	184(95.3)	122(100)	62(87.3)	< 0.001
	Yes	9(4.7)	-	9(4.7)	

Table 1: Comparison of basic and laboratory characteristics of high-risk APE and non-high-risk APE

Student's t-test / Chi-Square test (p<0.05 significance)

APE: acute pulmonary embolism, PLT: platelets, HGB: hemoglobin, HCT: hematocrit, RDW: red cell distribution width, NEU: neutrophil, LYM: lymphocyte, MON: monocyte, NLR: neutrophil to lymphocyte ratio, PLR: platelet to lymphocyte ratio, RLR: RDW to lymphocyte ratio, MLR: monocyte to lymphocyte ratio, SII: systemic immune inflammation index.

notable for both the diagnosis and prognosis of mortality in VTE²¹. Peng et al. found SII as an independent predictor of VTE after hip fracture in elderly patients²². Gok et al classified 442 patients with APE as massive, submassive, and non-massive. They revealed that SII was a strong independent predictor of massive APE, with a cut-off value of >1161²³. Since according our results obtained, SII can predict high-risk APE with a cut-off of >1235.35. (AUC:0.84).

Neutrophil-to-lymphocyte ratio (NLR) is a biomarker reflecting the balance between systemic inflammation and

immunity²⁴. Telo et al. found increased PLR and NLR in highrisk patients with APE²⁵. Ateş et al. examined the diagnostic differentiation of independent predictors of massive APE compared to the submassive group and found that NLR had 0.893 ± 0.013 AUC¹³. Throughout line with the literature, we discovered that NLR was useful in determining severe APE in our study.

PLR and the CT pulmonary artery obstruction index were found to be positively correlated in one study, which suggests that a higher PLR is linked to a higher thrombus

Table 2: Diagnostic	accuracy of inflammatory	parameters for differentiation	of high-risk APE from	m non-high-risk APE
	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,			

High-risk APE (n:71) Non-high-risk APE (122)	AUC	Cut-off	Sensitivity %	Specificity%	AUC 95% CI	P-value	PPV %	NPV%
NLR	0.78	>5.71	74.65	72.13	0.71-0.83	< 0.001	60.9	83
PLR	0.77	>154.38	76.06	66.39	0.70-0.83	< 0.001	56.8	82.7
MLR	0.76	>0.41	74.65	70.49	0.69-0.82	< 0.001	59.6	82.7
RLR	0.68	>8	80.28	50	0.61-0.75	< 0.001	48.3	81.3
SII(PLT*NLR)	0.84	>1235.35	87.32	68.85	0.78-0.89	< 0.001	62	90.3

AUC, Area under curve; SE, Standard error; PPV, positive predictive value; NPV, negative predictive value; CI, confidence interval;

NLR: neutrophil to lymphocyte ratio, PLR: platelet to lymphocyte ratio, MLR: monocyte to lymphocyte ratio, RLR: RDW to lymphocyte ratio, SII: systemic immune inflammation index.

load²⁶. PLR was significantly higher in patients with massive pulmonary embolism (PE) proportion of patients with submassive or low-risk PE, according to research by Ateş et al¹³. In the study by Phan et al., PLR was statistically significantly lower in patients with massive PE (90.3 (50.4-164)), while it was higher in patients with low-risk PE (173 (109-145))¹⁵. Kundi et al. discovered that PLR could predict patients with sPESI 1 (high-risk) APE with 149 cut-off, 76.3% specificity, and 77.1% sensitivity, in their study (AUC: 0.860)²⁷. Similarly, PLR was able to predict high-risk APE in our study.

LMR has been demonstrated to be a marker of the systemic inflammatory response and a potential prognostic factor in a number of cancers²⁸. Duyan et al found that MLR is a valuable parameter in the diagnosis of acute appendicitis in children²⁹. LMR levels were substantially lower in survivors after APE than in those who died after APE, according to Ertem et al.³⁰. LMR was found to be related to prognosis in patients with intermediate-low and low-risk PE by Köse et al.¹². Our study found that MLR, an equivalent of LMR, was higher in patients with high-risk APE (AUC: 0.76). According to the literature review, our study was a first in this respect.

Red blood cell distribution width (RDW) is a quantitative measure of the variability in the size of circulating red blood cells. A study concluded that high RDW level is an independent predictor of short-term mortality in PE³¹. RLR is a new biomarker. Wu et al. demonstrated high sensitivity and specificity of RLR in predicting hepatic impairment in patients with hepatitis E virus³². Furthermore, it was revealed that RLR has acceptable diagnostic power in the determination of acute appendicitis in pediatric patients²⁹. However, this is the first study to show that RLR can predict the severity of APE patients. Our study contributed to the literature in terms of the fair diagnostic power of RLR in predicting high-risk patients with APE.

Limitations

The most important limitations of our study are that it is a singlecenter and retrospective study. Although the completeness of our dataset is satisfactory, the small number of patients is also one of the limitations. Therefore, our findings cannot be generalized but may be informative and supportive for future studies for more reliable and conclusive results.

Conclusion

As a result, we found that SII is valuable and stronger than other markers in predicting high-risk patients with APE diagnosed in the emergency department. In addition, as a contribution to the literature, we determined that MLR and RLR are biomarkers that can be used to predict severe APE. *Ethics Committee Approval:* The study was approved by Local Ethics Commission (protocol code:121, decision no:121, issue: E-48670771-514.99 date: 18 April 2022). The institutional review board waived informed consent to conduct this retrospective study. The current study was carried out in accordance with the Helsinki Declaration.

References

- Konstantinides S V., Meyer G, Bueno H, et al. 2019 ESC Guidelines for the diagnosis and management of acute pulmonary embolism developed in collaboration with the European Respiratory Society (ERS). *Eur Heart J.* 2020;41(4):543-603. doi:10.1093/EURHEARTJ/EHZ405
- Wolberg AS, Rosendaal FR, Weitz JI, et al. Venous thrombosis. Nat Rev Dis Prim 2015 11. 2015;1(1):1-17. doi:10.1038/ nrdp.2015.6
- Zhou XY, Ben SQ, Chen HL, Ni SS. The prognostic value of pulmonary embolism severity index in acute pulmonary embolism: A meta-analysis. *Respir Res.* 2012;13(1):1-12. doi:10.1186/1465-9921-13-111/FIGURES/7
- 4. GÜNLÜ S, AKKAYA S, POLAT C, EDE H, ÖZTÜRK Ö. Kronik Obstrüktif Akciğer Hastalığı Ciddiyeti ile Sağ Ventrikül Strain İlişkisi. *MN Kardiyol*. 2021;28(2):74-79. Accessed November 11, 2022. http://search/yayin/detay/446195
- Evsen A, Demir M, Günlü S. Evaluation of epicardial fat tissue and echocardiographic parameters in patients with silent enemy subclinical hypothyroidism. *Echocardiography*. Published online 2022. doi:10.1111/echo.15471
- Kucher N, Goldhaber SZ. Risk stratification of acute pulmonary embolism. *Semin Thromb Hemost*. 2006;32(8):838-847. doi:10.1055/S-2006-955466/ID/31
- Jiménez D, Kopecna D, Tapson V, et al. Derivation and validation of multimarker prognostication for normotensive patients with acute symptomatic pulmonary embolism. *Am J Respir Crit Care Med.* 2014;189(6):718-726. doi:10.1164/ RCCM.201311-2040OC/SUPPL_FILE/DISCLOSURES.PDF
- Zee RYL, Glynn RJ, Cheng S, Steiner L, Rose L, Ridker PM. An Evaluation of Candidate Genes of Inflammation and Thrombosis in Relation to the Risk of Venous Thromboembolism. *Circ Cardiovasc Genet*. 2009;2(1):57-62. doi:10.1161/CIRCGE-NETICS.108.801969
- **9.** Chung T, Connor D, Joseph J, et al. Platelet activation in acute pulmonary embolism. *J Thromb Haemost*. 2007;5(5):918-924. doi:10.1111/J.1538-7836.2007.02461.X
- 10. Jo JY, Lee MY, Lee JW, Rho BH, Choi W II. Leukocytes and systemic inflammatory response syndrome as prognostic factors in pulmonary embolism patients. *BMC Pulm Med*. 2013;13(1):1-8. doi:10.1186/1471-2466-13-74/TABLES/6
- Ince LM, Weber J, Scheiermann C. Control of leukocyte trafficking by stress-associated hormones. *Front Immunol*. 2019;10(JAN):3143. doi:10.3389/FIMMU.2018.03143/BIBTEX
- Köse N, Yıldırım T, Akın F, Yıldırım SE, Altun İ. Prognostic role of NLR, PLR, and LMR in patients with pulmonary embolism. *Bosn J Basic Med Sci.* 2020;20(2):248. doi:10.17305/BJ-BMS.2019.4445

- Ates H, Ates I, Kundi H, Yilmaz FM. Diagnostic validity of hematologic parameters in evaluation of massive pulmonary embolism. *J Clin Lab Anal*. 2017;31(5). doi:10.1002/ JCLA.22072
- 14. Celik A, Ozcan IT, Gündes A, et al. Usefulness of admission hematologic parameters as diagnostic tools in acute pulmonary embolism. *Kaohsiung J Med Sci.* 2015;31(3):145-149. doi:10.1016/J.KJMS.2014.12.004
- 15. Phan T, Brailovsky Y, Fareed J, Hoppensteadt D, Iqbal O, Darki A. Neutrophil-to-Lymphocyte and Platelet-to-Lymphocyte Ratios Predict All-Cause Mortality in Acute Pulmonary Embolism. *Clin Appl Thromb*. 2020;26. doi:10.1177/1076029619900549
- 16. Chen JH, Zhai ET, Yuan YJ, et al. Systemic immune-inflammation index for predicting prognosis of colorectal cancer. *Wor-Id J Gastroenterol.* 2017;23(34):6261-6272. doi:10.3748/WJG. V23.I34.6261
- 17. Diao P, Wu Y, Li J, et al. Preoperative systemic immune-inflammation index predicts prognosis of patients with oral squamous cell carcinoma after curative resection. *J Transl Med.* 2018;16(1):1-11. doi:10.1186/S12967-018-1742-X/FIGURES/2
- Jomrich G, Gruber ES, Winkler D, et al. Systemic Immune-Inflammation Index (SII) Predicts Poor Survival in Pancreatic Cancer Patients Undergoing Resection. J Gastrointest Surg. 2020;24(3):610-618. doi:10.1007/S11605-019-04187-Z
- **19.** Norman G. Likert scales, levels of measurement and the "laws" of statistics. *Adv Health Sci Educ Theory Pract*. 2010;15(5):625-632. doi:10.1007/S10459-010-9222-Y
- **20.** Li S, Liu K, Gao Y, et al. Prognostic value of systemic immune-inflammation index in acute/subacute patients with cerebral venous sinus thrombosis. *Stroke Vasc Neurol.* 2020;5(4):368-373. doi:10.1136/SVN-2020-000362
- 21. Xue J, Ma D, Jiang J, Liu Y. Diagnostic and Prognostic Value of Immune/Inflammation Biomarkers for Venous Thromboembolism: Is It Reliable for Clinical Practice? *J Inflamm Res.* 2021;14:5059-5077. doi:10.2147/JIR.S327014
- **22.** Peng J, Wang H, Zhang L, Lin Z. Construction and efficiency analysis of prediction model for venous thromboembolism risk in the elderly after hip fracture. *Zhong Nan Da Xue Xue Bao Yi Xue Ban.* 2021;46(2):142-148. doi:10.11817/J. ISSN.1672-7347.2021.190722
- **23.** Gok M, Kurtul A. A novel marker for predicting severity of acute pulmonary embolism: systemic immune-inflammation

index. *Scand Cardiovasc J*. 2021;55(2):91-96. doi:10.1080/140 17431.2020.1846774

- **24.** Zahorec R. Ratio of neutrophil to lymphocyte counts--rapid and simple parameter of systemic inflammation and stress in critically ill. *Bratisl Lek Listy*. 2001;102(1):5-14.
- 25. Telo S, Kuluöztürk M, Deveci F, Kirkil G. The relationship between platelet-to-lymphocyte ratio and pulmonary embolism severity in acute pulmonary embolism. *Int Angiol.* 2019;38(1):4-9. doi:10.23736/S0392-9590.18.04028-2
- **26.** Ozcan Cetin EH, Cetin MS, Canpolat U, et al. Platelet-to-lymphocyte ratio as a novel marker of in-hospital and long-term adverse outcomes among patients with acute pulmonary embolism: A single center large-scale study. *Thromb Res.* 2017;150:33-40. doi:10.1016/J.THROMRES.2016.12.006
- 27. Hemmer B, Kerschensteiner M, Korn T. Role of the innate and adaptive immune responses in the course of multiple sclerosis. *Lancet Neurol.* 2015;14(4):406-419. doi:10.1016/S1474-4422(14)70305-9
- 28. Hutterer GC, Sobolev N, Ehrlich GC, et al. Pretreatment lymphocyte-monocyte ratio as a potential prognostic factor in a cohort of patients with upper tract urothelial carcinoma. J Clin Pathol. 2015;68(5):351-355. doi:10.1136/JCLIN-PATH-2014-202658
- **29.** Duyan M, Vural N. Diagnostic value of monocyte-lymphocyte ratio and red cell distribution width- lymphocyte ratio against other biomarkers in children with acute appendicitis, cross-sectional study. *Trop Doct*. 2022;52(4): 510-514. doi:10.1177/00494755221122489
- **30.** Ertem AG, Yayla C, Acar B, et al. Relation between lymphocyte to monocyte ratio and short-term mortality in patients with acute pulmonary embolism. *Clin Respir J.* 2018;12(2):580-586. doi:10.1111/CRJ.12565
- **31.** Ozsu S, Abul Y, Gunaydin S, Orem A, Ozlu T. Prognostic value of red cell distribution width in patients with pulmonary embolism. *Clin Appl Thromb.* 2014;20(4):365-370. doi:10.1177/1076029612464901
- **32.** Wu J, Zhang X, Liu H, Guo N, Pan Q, Wang Y. RDW, NLR and RLR in predicting liver failure and prognosis in patients with hepatitis E virus infection. *Clin Biochem*. 2019;63:24-31. doi:10.1016/j.clinbiochem.2018.11.012

Investigation of HBV, HCV, and HIV Seropositivity in Healthcare Workers of Reproductive Age

Hulya Aladag¹

¹ Department of Obstetrics and Gynecology. Malatya Turgut Özal University Faculty of Medicine, , Malatya, Turkey

Abstract

Background: Hepatitis B virus (HBV), hepatitis C virus (HCV), and Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) infections are health problems that threaten human health. This study aimed to investigate HBV, HCV, and HIV seropositivity in female healthcare workers of childbearing age in our hospital.

Materials and Methods: 1224 women working in our hospital, who were of childbearing age, were included in the study. The HBsAg, Anti-HBc total, Anti-HBs, Anti-HCV, and anti-HIV results of the patients were analyzed using the hospital database.

Results: Seven (0.5%) reproductive-age female healthcare workers were positive for HBsAg. While anti-HB positivity was detected in 1128 (93.6%) of 1224 healthcare workers, anti-HBs and anti-HBc were positive in 80 (6.53%) patients. Both anti-HBs and anti-HBc were negative in 16 (1.3%) subjects (neither vaccinated nor exposed to HBV).

Conclusion: Healthcare workers are at high risk for viral hepatitis and other infectious diseases. The fact that the frequency of HBV, HCV, and HIV among healthcare professionals of reproductive age is relatively low in our region shows that the training for healthcare professionals has been quite successful in recent years, both in our country and in our area.

Due to the high contagiousness of viral hepatitis B in our country, not only healthcare professionals of reproductive age but all healthcare personnel should be meticulously vaccinated. It is essential to implement standard infection control programs for HBV, HCV, and HIV and to increase compliance with national and international programs.

Keywords: Seroprevalence, healthcare professionals, hepatitis B virus, hepatitis C virus, HIV

Introduction

Blood-borne diseases are among the most common risks that healthcare workers are exposed to.1 According to the World Health Organization (WHO) data, more than 80 million healthcare workers worldwide are infected with contaminated medical devices.2 Infections caused by hepatitis B (HBV) and hepatitis C (HCV) viruses and human immunodeficiency virus (HIV) have become significant health problems due to the increase in the number of patients all over the world. Hepatitis B virus (HBV) infection can lead to chronic hepatitis, cirrhosis, and hepatocellular carcinoma over time, which may threaten life.3-4-5 The Prevalence of HBV is 3.5-4% in the general population. It has been reported that this rate is 1.5-2 times higher in healthcare personnel.4 The prevalence of HCV is lower than HBV (0.2%-2%). However, it causes chronic hepatitis and cirrhosis more frequently compared to HBV. It is known that approximately 71 million people in the

world are infected with HCV.6 The frequency of HCV in Turkey varies between 0.3-1.8% in the general population.7 Health workers may become infected with this virus during interventional procedures, surgical interventions, and dressings.8 It is essential to investigate risky diseases such as HBV, HCV, and HIV in female healthcare workers. These infections pose a danger to both the mother and the fetus and negatively affect both health. Our research is significant because it is the first study conducted on female workers of reproductive age in our country.

This study aimed to investigate HBV, HCV, and HIV seropositivity in female healthcare workers of childbearing age working in our hospital.

Material and Method

The study included 1224 female health personnel of reproductive age, aged between 19-50 years, working in the Education and Research Hospital of our University between

Corresponding Author: Hulya Aladag e-mail: hulyaaladag2007@hotmail.com Received: 20.11.2022 • Revision: 25.11.2022 • Accepted: 25.11.2022 DOI: 10.55994/ejcc.1207557 ©Copyright by Emergency Physicians Association of Turkey -Available online at https://dergipark.org.tr/tr/pub/ejcc **Cite this article as:** Aladag H. Investigation of HBV, HCV, and HIV seropositivity in healthcare workers of reproductive age. Eurasian Journal of Critical Care. 2022;4(3): 106-109

January 01, 2020, and December 31, 2021. Ninety-three people whose data could not be reached or whose data were missing were excluded from the study. Ethics committee approval was obtained for this study. The international Declaration of Helsinki carried out the study. Demographic information about the patients, their departments, and their occupations were recorded in the forms. They were grouped according to their occupations, age groups, and years of employment. Obtained laboratory results were compared with these groups. The patients were divided into groups according to their professions as doctors, nurses, laboratory workers, technicians, and other staff of our hospital. In terms of working time, they were divided into groups of one, five, ten years, and more than ten years.

Laboratory Analysis

Serum samples HBsAg, anti-HBc total, anti-HBs, anti-HCV, and anti-HIV were measured by the ELISA method based on chemiluminescence in an E170 modular (Roche, USA) device. The examinations were carried out by the manufacturer's instructions. Anti-HCV was studied with third-generation testing systems (Abbott AXSYM system, HCV version 3.0, Hepatitis C virus Encoded Antigen (Recombinant HCr43, c200, c100-3, NS5). All samples above the minimum positive value were considered reactive.

Statistical analysis: The obtained data were evaluated using number and percentage calculations. In evaluating HBsAg and Anti-HBs, HCV, and HIV positivity, the age comparison calculated with the odds ratio univariate was compared within itself. The Chi-square test and Fisher exact Chi-square test were applied when necessary. The relationship between age (19-25, 26-35, 36-45 and over 45 years old) and working time (<1, 2-5, 6-10, >11 years) was analyzed by using a multiple logistic regression model. A similar application was made for hepatitis C and HIV, and p<0.05 was considered statistically significant. Statistical Package for the Social Sciences (SPSS) 22.0 (SPSS,

Table 1: HBV, HCV, HIV Infection Seropositivity Distribution

Inc., Chicago, IL, USA) program was used for statistical evaluation of the data.

Results

This study was carried out on 1224 female healthcare workers of reproductive age working in our university's training and research hospital.

The age range of employees of childbearing age is between 19-50, and the average age is 30.02 ± 5.42 years. Of our staff, 211 (17.2%) are doctors, 750 nurses (61.2%), 57 (4.6%) are anesthesia technicians, 20 (1.6%) are in the dialysis unit, 60 are laboratory professionals 4.8), six people (0.49%) were emergency medical technicians, 80 cleaning personnel (6.5%) and 40 people (3.2%) were x-ray technicians.

In our study, we found the HBsAg seroprevalence of women of childbearing age to be 0.57% (Table 1). While 1128 (93.6%) isolated anti-HBs positivity of 1224 healthcare workers were detected, anti-HBs + anti-HBc total positivity was found in 80 (6.64%) individuals (Table 1).

In the comparison made between the task groups, no statistically significant difference was found between the hepatitis B risk and the duty performed by the health personnel in the hospital (p>0.05). The odds ratio value between nurses and doctors was calculated as 2.54.

Isolated anti-HBs were investigated in healthcare professionals, and an average of 93.6% in the whole group, 96.6% in doctors, 93.3% in nurses, 92.9% in anesthesia technicians, 90% in dialysis workers, 86.6% in laboratory workers, 100% in emergency technicians, 75% in cleaning personnel, 87.5% in x-ray technicians. Found. The difference between the groups was not statistically significant (p>0.05). When compared in terms of anti-HBs + antiHBc total ratios of healthcare workers, it was found 22.5% in cleaning personnel, 10% in laboratory and dialysis technicians, 3.3% in doctors, and 5.4% in nurses, and the difference between the groups was not statistically significant (p>0.05) (Table 1).

Persons	n (%)	HBsAg	Anti-HBs	Anti-HBs+Anti-HBc total	Anti-HCV	Anti-HIV
Doctor	211 (17.2)	0 (0)	204 (96.6)	7 (3.3)	0 (0)	0 (09
Nurse	750 (61.2)	2 (0.2)	700 (93.3)	41 (5.4)	0 (0)	0 (0)
Anesthesiologist	57 (4.6)	1 (1.7)	53 (92.9)	3 (5.2)	0 (0)	0 (0)
Dialysis	20 (1.6)	0 (0)	18 (90)	2 (10)	0 (0)	0 (0)
Lab technician	60 (4.8)	2 (3.3)	52 (86.6)	6 (10)	1 (0.08)	0 (0)
EMT	6 (0.4)	0 (0)	6 (100)	0 (0)	0 (0)	0 (0)
Cleaning staff	80 (6.5)	2 (2.5)	60 (75)	18 (22.5)	0 (0)	0 (0)
Radiology technician	40 (3.2)	0 (0)	35 (87.5)	3 (7.5)	0 (0)	0 (0)
Total	1224 (100)	7 (0.5)	1128 (93.6)	80 (6.53)	1 (0.08)	0 (0)

n (%): Number (percent) EMT: Emergency medicine technician

Working time Year	Total number n (%)	HBsAg positive n (%)
0-1	150 (12.2)	0 (0)
2-5	280 (22.8)	0 (0)
6-10	600 (49)	1 (0.16)
>10	194 (15.89)	6 (3.0)

ivity
t

Healthcare workers were divided into groups regarding their working time and hepatitis B risk, and the ratios between these groups were compared. The difference was not statistically significant (p>0.05). The odds ratio value between the personnel working in the clinic for 11 years or more and the personnel working for one year or less was calculated as 2.45. Since HBsAg positivity was not detected in those who worked less than one year and between 2 and 5 years, it was found positive in 1 (0.01%) of 600 people who worked for 6-10 years, and 6 (0.03%) of 194 people who worked for more than 11 years. The difference was not statistically significant (p>0.05). (Table 2). HBsAg was not positive in 80 people aged 19-25 and 280 people aged 26-35. HBsAg was positive in 1 (0.01%) of 544 patients whose age range was 36-45 and 6 (0.02%) of 220 employees aged 45-50 years. When healthcare professionals were divided into age groups and compared within themselves, no statistically significant difference was found between the age groups (p>0.05) (Table 3). Health professionals were divided into three groups according to their branches: surgery, internal branches, and personnel working in different hospital units separate from these branches. HBsAg was found positive in 3 (0.06%) of 500 people working in surgical departments, 3 (0.06%) of 450 people working in internal branches, and 1 (0.03%) of 274 people working in other units. In healthcare professionals, these three groups were compared among themselves in terms of hepatitis B risk, and no statistically significant difference was found between the groups (p>0.05) (Table 4).

Table	3:	Age	aroups	and	HBsAa
Iable	٦.	Aye	groups	anu	TIDSAY

Age groups	Total n (%)	HBsAg positive n (%)
19-25	180 (14.7)	0 (0)
26-35	280 (22.8)	0 (0)
36-45	544 (44.4)	1 (0.18)
45-50	220 (17.9)	6 (2.7)

Table 4:	Department	and HBsAg	positivity
Table 4.	Department	апи прзад	positivity

Department	Total n (%)	HBsAg positive n (%)
Surgical	500 (40.89	3 (0.60)
Internal	450 (36.7)	3 (0.66)
Other	274 (22.3)	1 (0.36)

Discussion

There have been many studies investigating the seroprevalence of HBsAg all over the world. David et al. found this rate to be 0.1% nine among healthcare workers in the United States and 5% in a study conducted in India.10 According to studies, the HBV carrier rate in Turkey is between 1.5-7% 11-12-13. We found the frequency of HBsAg to be 0.5% among healthcare workers of childbearing age in our hospital. This difference can be explained by the fact that healthcare personnel attach importance to preventive measures, investigate the serological indicators of hepatitis B and hepatitis C in patients who will undergo invasive procedures, and the effective use of vaccination. Comparisons were made regarding age groups among healthcare professionals in various centers. Leblebicioglu et al. 11 did not find a significant difference, while Özsoy et al.14 found an important relationship between the 26-35 age group and HBsAg seroprevalence. In our study, healthcare professionals were divided into four groups in terms of age: 19-25, 26-35, 36-45, and 45-50 years old. In our study, no statistically significant difference was found between age groups and HBsAg positivity (p>0.05) (Table 3).

In studies investigating a relationship between occupational groups and hepatitis B infection risk in various centers, Köse et al. 15 found no significant difference, while Otkun et al. 12, Ulusoy et al. 13, Kutlu et al. 16, and Özsoy et al. 11 found a meaningful relationship in favor of nurses. Unlike these, Berktas et al. 17 found this rate high in favor of doctors and attributed this to the fact that most of the nurses included in the study had just started their profession. In our study, no significant difference was found between occupational groups in terms of HBsAg positivity (p>0.05) (Table 1). In our research, HBsAg seroprevalence was determined as 0.0% (0) in doctors, 0.2% (2) in nurses, 3.3% (2) in laboratory workers, 2.5% (2) in cleaning personnel, and 1.7% (1) in anesthesia technicians when we divided female healthcare professionals of childbearing age into groups according to their occupations. Found. In the comparison made between occupational groups, no significant relationship was found between the health personnel in terms of hepatitis B risk and the duty they performed in the hospital (p>0.05) (Table 1).

However, when the nurses and doctors were compared, the odds ratio value was found to be 2.54. This value shows that the risk of encountering hepatitis B infection among nurses is approximately 2.5 times higher than that of doctors. This may be due to reasons such as nurses' invasive procedures, such as vascular access, and patients' exposure to body benefits and secretions more than doctors. On the other hand, because of their active participation in patient care during their school years, nurses probably encounter HBV earlier than doctors. In our country, unlike western countries, the Prevalence of HCV is lower than HBV. Still, it is essential for both the average

population and healthcare professionals in terms of its more chronicity. In the studies performed, Öksüz et al. 18 found anti-HCV positivity of 0.2%, İnci et al. 19 0.34%, and Aşkar et al. 20 reported it as 0.15%.

In our study, the rate of anti-HCV among healthcare workers of childbearing age was found to be 0.08%. In our study, the frequency of HCV among healthcare workers of childbearing age was found to be positive in only one person (0.008%), and our result was found to be lower than other results in our country. In particular, developments in viral hepatitis C (HCV) have occurred at a dizzying pace. Permanent viral response rates have increased from 15-20% with treatments for one year or a half years in the 2000s to 99-100% with one tablet per day treatment today. The world health cover (WHO) talks about the complete eradication of HCV in the 2030s.

According to WHO's 2022 data, an average of 40 million people worldwide are infected with HIV. The risk of transmission of the human immunodeficiency virus (HIV) is between 0.2-0.5%. 21 In studies reported from our country, anti-HIV positivity was not reported in healthcare personnel. 19-21 In our study, HIV was not detected in any patient among the healthcare professionals of childbearing age, which shows that healthcare professionals have received adequate training and precautions.

Conclusion

As it is known, healthcare workers are at high risk for viral hepatitis and other infectious viral diseases. The fact that the values in our study were lower than the results of previous years in the literature indicates that the training and vaccinations given to female employees of childbearing age are pretty successful. Only people aged 45-50 who worked for more than 11 years had a higher HBsAg value than others due to more prolonged exposure. Due to the high contagiousness of viral hepatitis B in the eastern Anatolia region, where we are located, it is very important to meticulously vaccinate not only healthcare workers of reproductive age, but also all healthcare personnel to implement standard infection control programs for HBV, HCV, and HIV, and to increase compliance with national and international programs.

References

- 1. Beltrami EM, Williams IT, Shapiro CN, Champerland ME. Risk and management of blood-borne infections in health care workers. Clin Microbial Rev. 2000; 13: 385-407.
- Shoaei P, Lotfi N, Hassannejad R, Yaran M, Ataei B, Kassaian N, et al. Seroprevalence of Hepatitis C Infection among Laboratory Health Care Workers in Isfahan, Iran. Int J Prev Med. 2012; 1: 146-9.

- **3.** Lok ASF. Hepatitis B treatment: What we know now and what remains to be researched. Hepatology 2019; 3: 8-19.
- 4. Mishra D, Singh H, Gogate P, Bhushan P, Singh MK, Srivastav T, et al. Prevalence of incidental and total human immunodeficiency virus, hepatitis B and hepatitis C seropositivity among patients posted for cataract surgery at a tertiary care center in? India. *Indian J Ophthalmol.* 2022; 70: 400–4
- Global Burden of Disease 2015 HIV Collaborators. Estimates of global, regional, and national incidence, prevalence, and mortality of HIV, 1980-2015: The Global Burden of Disease Study 2015. *Lancet HIV*. 2016; 3: 361–87
- Tabak F, Yurdaydın C, Kaymakoğlu S et al., and Guidelines Study Group VH. Diagnosis, management and treatment of hepatitis B virus infection: Turkey 2017 Clinical Practice Guidelines. Turk J Gastroenterol. 2017; 28:73-83.
- Özkan H. Epidemiology of chronic hepatitis B in Turkey. Euroasian j hepatogastroenterol 2018;8:73
- Willy ME, Dhillon GL, Loewen NL, Wesley RA, Henderson DK. Adverse exposures and universal precautions practices among a group of highly exposed health professionals. Infect Control Hosp Epidemiol. 1990; 11: 351-6.
- **9.** David L ve ark. Viral hepatitis in health care personnel at The John Hopkins Hospital. Arch Intern Med. 1993; 153: 1705-12.
- 10. Acikgoz, A.; Cimrin, D.; Kizildag, S.; Esen, N.; Balci, P.; Sayiner, A.A. Hepatitis A, B and C seropositivity among first-year healthcare students in western Turkey: A seroprevalence study. *BMC Infect. Dis.* 2020, *20*, 529
- Leblebicioğlu H, Günaydın M, Durupınar B. Hastane personelinde hepatit B seroprevalansı. Mikrobiyol Bült 1993; 27: 113-8.
- 12. Otkun M ve ark. Trakya Üniversitesi Egitim Uygulama ve Arastırma Hastanesi çalısanlarında hepatit B virüs infeksiyonu prevalansı. Klimik Derg. 1994; 7:79-81
- 13. Ulusoy S, Bilgiç A. Hastane personelinde hepatit B virus serolojik göstergeleri. İnfek Derg 1994; 8: 5-6
- Özsoy MF ve ark. Seroprevalances of hepatitis B and C among health care workers in Turkey. Journal of Viral Hepatitis, 2003; 10: 150-156.
- Köse S ve ark. Yüksek risk grubunda olan saglık çalısanlarında viral hepatit A, B, C seroprevalansı. Viral Hepatit Dergisi 2003; 8: 152-54.
- **16.** Kutlu T ve ark. Saglık personelinde hepatit B taraması ve asılama. Klinik Gelisim 1995; 8: 3681-84
- 17. Berktaş M, Dalkılıç AE, Yavuz MT ve ark. Y.Y.Ü. Tıp Fakültesi Araştırma Hastanesi personelinde hepatit B seroprevalansı. Viral Hepatit Dergisi. 1995; 2: 87-9
- 18. Öksüz Ş, Yıldırım M, Özaydın Ç, Şahin İ, Arabacı H, Gemici G. Bir devlet hastanesi çalışanlarında HBV ve HCV seroprevalansının araştırılması. Ankem Derg. 2009; 23(1): 30-3.
- 19. İnci M, Aksebzeci AT, Yağmur G, Kartal B, Emiroğlu M, Erdem Y. Hastane çalışanlarında HBV, HCV ve HIV seropozitifliğinin araş- tırılması. Türk Hijyen ve Deneysel Biyoloji Dergisi. 2009; 66(2): 59-66.
- 20. Aşkar E. Sağlık Çalışanlarında Hepatit B ve Hepatit C Seropre- valansı [Uzmanlık Tezi]. İstanbul: Şişli Etfal Eğitim ve Araştırma Hastanesi İnfeksiyon Hastalıkları ve Klinik Mikrobiyoloji Kliniği, 2006.
- **21.** De Cock KM, Jaffe HW, Curran JW. The evolving epidemiology of HIV/AIDS. AIDS. 2012; 26(10): 1205-13.

Case Report Eurasian Journal of Critical Care

Kounis Syndrome or Adrenalin Side-Effect?

[©]Oya Güven¹, [©] Meziyet Camuz², [©] Didar Elif Akgün³, [©] Mert Avsever⁴ ¹ Kırklareli University Medicine School, Emergency Department, Assistant Professor ² Kırklareli Training and Research Hospital, Emergency Department, General Practitioner ³ Kırklareli Training and Research Hospital, Cardiology Department, Cardiologist ⁴ Medifema Hospital, Emergency Room, General Practitioner

Introduction

Kounis syndrome, defined by the concurrence of allergic reaction and acute coronary syndrome, was identified by Kounis and Zavras in 1991¹. The pathophysiology of the disease has been described as a complex process with mast cell-mediated progressive coronary vasospasm, intimal erosion or rupture. One study described, even an intact tunica intima may be damaged through this mechanism². Although there are studies that have shown that arteries of various locations may be affected, coronary arteries (especially LAD) are impacted most³. In this article, we present a case of myocardial infarction following a bee sting, which we think was worsened by the anti-allergy treatment.

Case Report

A 66-year-old male, stung in the lower lip by a bee, was brought to our emergency room with sudden onset of vomiting, syncope, and hypotension. The diagnosis of anaphylaxis had been made and 0,5 mg of adrenaline was administered intramuscularly by the paramedics during the transfer. On examination in the ER, he was confused and had diffuse body erythema with lower lip and bilateral upper-eyelid angioedema. His vital signs were as follows: blood pressure, 90/60 mm Hg; pulse, 75 beats/minute; arterial oxygen saturation 96% on room air; and respiratory rate 12-15/minute. He was started on pheniramine 45.5 mg and methylprednisolone 80 mg intravenously. The ECG (electrocardiography) findings included (showed that) STsegment depression in the anterior and lateral leads (D1aVL-V1-V6), and ST-segment elevation in the inferior leads (D2-D3-aVF) (Figure 1). Based on these findings, acute STelevation myocardial infarction was diagnosed. The patient was given 300 mg of acetylsalicylic acid and 180 mg of ticagrelor orally, and 5000 IU heparin intravenously.

Following the improvement of the anaphylaxis symptoms, the patient underwent coronary angiography. While the 60-70% stenosis in the proximal left ascending artery (LAD) was planned to be electively evaluated through the fractional flow reserve (FFR) technique; stents were placed for the hazy lesion with an 80% stenosis in the proximal right coronary artery (RCA), and for another lesion with 90% stenosis in the later (distal) part of the RCA (Figure 2). ECG findings resolved upon the intervention (Figure 3). The ejection fraction was within normal limits on discharge from the hospital. Additionally, left ventricular hypertrophy and stage II diastolic dysfunction were noted. He was followed up in coronary intensive care unit for four days and was discharged on valsartan-hydrochlorothiazide, benidipine hydrochloride, atorvastatin calcium trihydrate, acetylsalicylic acid, clopidogrel and nebivolol.

Discussion

In the literature, three variants of Kounis syndrome have been described. While type 1 is seen in patients with no risk factors for ischemic heart disease, type 2 is mostly encountered in patients with the pre-existing atheromatous disease. Type 3, on the other hand, involves stent thrombosis following platelet activation. According to this classification, the reaction our patient had corresponded to type 2, due to his predisposing risk factors for coronary artery disease.

Kounis syndrome may develop secondary to various allergens such as medications and insect poison. Atopic people are thought to be more vulnerable to the syndrome4. On further questioning, we have learnt our patient didn't have any known allergies, and it was his first time exposed to bee poison.

Adrenaline plays a vital role in the management of anaphylactic shock caused by Hymenoptera (insects' family) poisoning. The tryptase enzyme secreted by mast cells is shown to cause hypotension and plaque erosion^{5,6}. Additionally, it can be extrapolated from the rise in adrenaline

Corresponding Author: Oya Güven e-mail: ersinoya@yahoo.com Received: 18.10.2022 · Accepted: 09.12.2022 DOI: 10.55994/ejcc.1190496 ©Copyright by Emergency Physicians Association of Turkey -Available online at https://dergipark.org.tr/tr/pub/ejcc Cite this article as: Guven O, Camuz M, Akgun DE, Avsever M. Kounis Syndrome or Adrenalin Side-Effect? Eurasian Journal of Critical Care. 2022;4(3): 110-111

levels in myocardial infarction that anti-allergy treatment may worsen an underlying coronary heart disease⁷. Likewise, we believe, adrenaline may have aggravated the ongoing myocardial infarction in our patient.

In light of the above, close cardiac monitoring is highly recommended in patients who develop severe allergic reactions, regardless of chest pain. It's worth noting that clinicians must pay even closer attention to patients with underlying cardiac comorbidities.

Conclusion

In this study, we tried to explain the cardiac consequences of severe allergic reactions and anti-allergy treatment. It is not obvious which of these two plays a bigger part in the development of the acute coronary syndrome. However, given the high risk of dire outcomes, close cardiac monitoring and immediate intervention are instrumental in timely diagnosis.

References

1. Kounis NG, Zavras GM. Histamine-induced coronary artery spasm: the concept of allergic angina. The British journal of clinical practice. 1991; 45(2), 121-128.

- Constantinides P, Harkey M. Electron microscopic exploration of human endothelium in step-serial sections of early and advanced atherosclerotic lesions. Annals of the New York Academy of Sciences. 1990; 598, 113-124.
- Gonzalez-de-Olano D, Alvarez-Twose I, Matito A, Sanchez-Munoz L, Kounis NG, Escribano L. Mast cell activation disorders presenting with cerebral vasospasm-related symptoms: a" Kounis-like" syndrome? International journal of cardiology. 2011; 150(2), 210-211.
- Nikolaidis LA, Kounis NG, Gradman AH. Allergic angina and allergic myocardial infarction: a new twist on an old syndrome. The Canadian journal of cardiology. 2002; 18(5), 508-511.
- Bonadonna P, Perbellini O, Passalacqua G, Caruso B, Colarossi S, Dal Fior D, et.al. Clonal mast cell disorders in patients with systemic reactions to Hymenoptera stings and increased serum tryptase levels. Journal of allergy and clinical immunology. 2009; 123(3), 680-686.
- Mytas DZ, Stougiannos PN, Zairis MN, Tsiaousis GZ, Foussas SG, Hahalis GN, et.al. Acute anterior myocardial infarction after multiple bee stings. A case of Kounis syndrome. International Journal of Cardiology. 2009; 134(3), e129-e131.
- Bertel O, Buhler FR, Baitsch G, Ritz R, Burkart F. Plasma adrenaline and noradrenaline in patients with acute myocardial infarction: relationship to ventricular arrhythmias of varying severity. Chest. 1982; 82(1), 64-68.

Case Report Eurasian Journal of Critical Care

Primary Spontaneous Hemopneumothorax: A Case Report

^{ID} Mercan Nisa Aykaç¹, ^{ID} Serdar Ergenç¹, ^{ID} Ahmet Taha Özatak¹, ^{ID} Bahadır Taslidere¹, ^{ID} Basar Cander¹ ¹ Department of Emergency Medicine, Faculty of Medicine, Bezmialem Vakif University, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

Spontaneous hemopneumothorax is a rare condition. Bleeding occurs in 0.5% to 12% of patients with spontaneous pneumothorax. Early diagnosis with appropriate imaging methods is important. In order to prevent possible complications of pneumothorax in patients who present to the emergency department with a complaint of shortness of breath. Clinically, if a patient with a pneumothorax suddenly develops unexplained symptoms of shock, SHP should be considered and treated as a life-threatening emergency.

Keywords: Spontaneous hemopneumothorax, pneumothorax, emergency medicine

Introduction

Pneumothorax is defined as the presence of air in the pleural space (1). Primary pneumothorax; is a type of pneumothorax that develops spontaneously. The rate of spontaneous hemopneumothorax (SHP) is 0.5-11.6% in patients with primary pneumothorax (2,3). Hemopneumothorax is the condition whichpresence of air and blood in the pleural space. It usually develops as a result of an injury of the vessels which is located between the leaves of the visceral and parietal pleura during the development of pneumothorax (4). Other causes include the rupture of well-vascularized bullae. The emergency intervention depends on the hemodynamic status, severity of symptoms, and degree of the pneumothorax. In patients presenting to the emergency department (ED) with the complaint of dyspnea, early diagnosis with appropriate imaging methods is important to prevent possible complications of pneumothorax (1).

Case Report

A 33-year-old male was admitted to the ED with a sudden dyspnea that started while walking. He had chest pain for two days and the pain increased this morning. There was no distinctive feature in his medical history except smoking 20 packs/year. His body temperature was 37.1, blood pressure was 137/94 mmHg, heart rate was 110 beats/min, respiratory rate was 18/min, SpO2 was 95% and Glasgow Coma Scale was 15 points. On physical examination, the respiratory sounds were decreased at the left lung. Other system examinations were normal. In the laboratory; the white blood cell count was 13.03 / μ L, the hemoglobin value was 14.1 g/dl, and the platelet count was 303 /uL. Prothrombin time was 11.1 sec and the INR value was 0.97. The posteroanterior chest X-ray showed pneumothorax in the upper zone of the left lung and pleural effusion in the basal left lung (Figure 1). Thorax computed tomography showed bilateral pneumothorax, which was more prominent on the left, with bilateral diffuse bullae and left basal air-fluid level (Figure 2). A 28F tube thoracostomy was performed via the sixth intercostal space anterior axillary line of the patient by the thoracic surgeon. During tube thoracostomy, air outflow and approximately 150 cc of hemorrhagic fluid drainage were observed. Control X-ray showed normal ventilation of the lungs (Figure 3). During the follow-up in the thoracic surgery ward, the hemorrhage continued, and the patient underwent video-assisted thoracoscopic surgery for exploration. The patient was discharged on the fourth day with full recovery.

Discussion

Hemopneumothorax is a combination of two medical conditions: pneumothorax and hemothorax. Spontaneous hemopneumothorax (SPH) is a rare condition and bleeding

Cite this article as: Aykac MN, Ergenc S, Ozatak AT, Taslidere B, Cander B. Primary Spontaneous Hemopneumothorax: A Case Report. Eurasian Journal of Critical Care. 2022;4(3): 112-113

Corresponding Author: Bahadır Taşlıdere e-mail: drbahadir@yahoo.com Received: 08.11.2022 • Revision: 19.12.2022 • Accepted: 20.12.2022 DOI: 10.55994/ejcc.1200430 ©Copyright by Emergency Physicians Association of Turkey -Available online at https://dergipark.org.tr/tr/pub/ejcc

occurs in 0.5% to 12% of patients with spontaneous pneumothorax (SP). The most common cause of the disease; rupture of well-vascularized bullae (3,4). SPH is a medical emergency, so it's important to recognize its symptoms right away.

The appearance of the air-fluid line in radiological examinations, the presence of hemorrhagic effusion, and the development of shock findings in the patient may indicate spontaneous hemopneumothorax. The diagnosis of SHP depends on the recognition of sudden chest pain, shortness of breath, shock, and localized clinical signs in the chest. There are no prepared guidelines for the management of patients with SHP. The goals of treatment include resuscitation, hemostasis, and re-expansion of the lung. Initial treatment after prompt diagnosis of patients is adequate fluid replacement and drainage of the pleural space. Therefore, early diagnosis and treatment are important (5).

References

- Bintcliffe O, Maskell N. Spontaneous pneumothorax. BMJ. 2014;8:348.
- Huang YH, Chang PY, Wong KS, Chang CJ, Lai JY, Chen JC. An age-stratified longitudinal study of primary spontaneous pneumothorax. J Adolesc Health. 2017;61(4):527–32
- Chen Y, Guo Z. Unusual case of primary spontaneous hemopneumothorax in a young man with atypical tension pneumothorax: a case report. Journal of Medical Case Reports. 2018;12(1): 1-7
- Hsu CC, Wu YL, Lin HJ, et al. Indicators of haemothorax in patients with spontaneous pneumothorax. Emerg Med J 2005; 22: 415–417.
- Aragão AHM, Fonseca LA, Deulefeu FC, Medeiros IL, de Araújo RFV, da Cruz Neto CA, et al. Spontaneous hemopneumothorax: a rare cause of unexplained hemodynamic instability in a young patient. Case Rep Pulmonol. 2020; 23: 5026759

Letter to Editor Eurasian Journal of Critical Care

Complications of SARS-CoV-2 Infection in Geriatrics

Department of Emergency Medicine, University of Health Sciences Umraniye Training and Research Hospital, Istanbul, Turkey

Dear editor,

SARS-CoV-2 was declared a pandemic by the World Health Organization on March 11, 2020, when the first case was seen in Turkey. Since this date, there have been significant changes in the organization of the health system and the health behavior of the society (1). Particularly, the compliance of the elderly from risky groups to vaccination and pandemic measures has been at a high level. Advanced age has been reported as an important risk factor for mortality and poor outcome in SARS-CoV-2 infected patients in the literature (2). In various studies, it has been reported that the symptoms of SARS-CoV-2 infection, especially fever, can be masked in elderly patients, and patients can apply with atypical signs and symptoms (3). This may cause delay in the diagnosis process and the spread of nosocomial disease. SARS-CoV-2 infection generally progresses with a mild clinical picture in people who are not of advanced age and do not have comorbid diseases. However, elderly patients and patients with comorbid diseases have a high risk of progressing with a moderate or severe clinical picture, and these people usually need to be hospitalized in the hospital for diagnosis and treatment processes. Studies have shown that in vitro activities of antiviral drugs such as chloroquine, favipravir and remdesivir, that have been used since the beginning of the pandemic are not as successful as predicted in preventing hospitalizations, intensive care admissions or mortality. Therefore, specific antiviral treatments for SARS-CoV-2, continue to be investigated (4). The data obtained in the treatment of SARS-CoV-2 infection support the importance of the supportive treatments applied and that it is the main treatment approach. Especially in the elderly or those with comorbid diseases, the importance of supportive treatments in the management of clinical conditions and complications increases and has positive effects on survival rates (5).

Many studies show that SARS-CoV-2 infection can progress with complications and mortality rates increase

in elderly people and those with comorbid diseases (6,7). Complications in advanced patients were investigated in a study in the literature. In the study of Ramos-Rincon et al., the most common complication was ARDS (43%), followed by acute renal failure (24.6%). Other complications were reported as pneumonia (14.2%), acute heart failure (13.9%), multi-organ failure (10.8%) and sepsis (9.3%). Less common complications were reported as arrhythmia, acute coronary syndrome, venous thromboembolism, myocarditis, intravascular coagulation, seizure, and stroke. Ramos-Rincon et al. reported ARDS and multi-organ failure as cardinal causes regarding mortality and poor outcome in geriatric SARS-CoV-2 infected patients (7). In another study conducted by Zerah et al, it was shown that pulmonary and systemic inflammation findings resulting in multi-organ failure occur more frequently in elderly people infected with SARS-CoV-2 and increase mortality rates (8). The most important complications in this study were ARDS, acute kidney injury, delirium, heart failure, liver dysfunction and lymphopenia. Thrombotic diseases affecting both arterial and venous circulation are reported to develop more frequently in elderly patients with SARS-CoV-2 infection. Zerah et al. reported a higher incidence of advanced inflammation, platelet activation, endothelial dysfunction, stasis, and thrombotic events in older patients as a plausible explanation for complications (8). On the other hand, it was reported that age was not a risk factor for long-term effects in a study in which the six-month effects of SARS-CoV-2 infection were investigated (9).

Infections initiate a complex systemic inflammatory response as part of innate immunity. It activates coagulation following activation of host defense systems. In sepsis, this complex interaction of immune response and coagulation is called thrombo-inflammation or immune-thrombosis. Polyphosphates originating from microorganisms, mast cells, complement system, neutrophil extracellular traps (neutrophil extracellular traps), free DNA, histones are the main components that affect thrombin formation in sepsis. Cytokines that emerge in the inflammatory process also activate vascular endothelial cells and create a prothrombotic state by creating endothelial damage. In addition, the fibrinolytic system is also affected, for example PAI-1 activity increases (10). Since it was determined that a different picture developed in SARS-CoV-2 infection from DIC or sepsis-related DIC, this picture was started to be named as SARS-CoV-2 infection-associated coagulopathy. Coagulopathy seems to be related to the severity of the disease, its pathogenesis is not yet known, but it is thought to occur as a result of a "thrombo-inflammation" picture as described above. Its main features can be listed as follows: Coagulopathy becomes evident with an increase in D-dimer and fibrinogen levels, minimal changes in prothrombin time, activated partial thromboplastin time, and platelet count (11). High D-dimer level at admission is associated with increased mortality (10). The continuation of the D-dimer increase after hospitalization is a harbinger of multiorgan failure and the development of overt DIC. In patients who died, the increase is evident from the 4th day of hospitalization. Bleeding findings are not common despite coagulopathy. geriatric patients are at increased risk for thrombo-inflammation (11).

In conclusion, although the mortality rate of SARS-CoV-2 infection has decreased with new variants, age is still among the most known risk factors. Clinicians should be alert for complications in the management of SARS-CoV-2 infected geriatric patients.

References

- Özdemir S, Algın A. How will the Health Literacy and Crowded Emergency Room Be Affected After the COVID-19 Pandemic? Phnx Med J. 2021; 3(1): 50.
- 2. Bonanad C, García-Blas S, Tarazona-Santabalbina F, Sanchis J, Bertomeu-González V, Fácila L, et al. The Effect of Age on

Mortality in Patients With COVID-19: A Meta-Analysis With 611,583 Subjects. J Am Med Dir Assoc. 2020 Jul;21(7):915-918.

- Özdemir S, Akça H, Altunok İ, Algın A, Özkan A, Pala E, et al. Evaluation of the Relationship between Symptoms and Poor Prognosis on Patients Admitted to COVID-19 Outpatient Clinic: Retrospective Cohort Study. Anatolian J Emerg Med. 2021; 4(1): 1-5.
- Akin L, Gözel MG. Understanding dynamics of pandemics. Turk J Med Sci. 2020 Apr 21;50(SI-1):515-519.
- Özdemir S, Eroğlu SE, Algın A, Akca HS, Ozkan A, Pala E, et al. Analysis of laboratory parameters in patients with COVID-19: Experiences from a pandemic hospital. Ann Clin Anal Med. 2021;12 (Supp 4):518-23.
- Akça HŞ, Algın A, Özdemir S, Sevimli H, Kokulu K, Eroğlu SE. Comparison of the efficacy of PSI, CURB-65, CALL and BCRSS in predicting prognosis and mortality in COVID-19 patients. J Exp Clin Med. 2021;38(4):434-9
- Ramos-Rincon JM, Buonaiuto V, Ricci M, Martín-Carmona J, Paredes-Ruíz D, Calderón-Moreno M, et al; SEMI-COVID-19 Network. Clinical Characteristics and Risk Factors for Mortality in Very Old Patients Hospitalized With COVID-19 in Spain. J Gerontol A Biol Sci Med Sci. 2021 Feb 25;76(3):e28-e37.
- Zerah L, Baudouin É, Pépin M, Mary M, Krypciak S, Bianco C, et al. Clinical Characteristics and Outcomes of 821 Older Patients With SARS-Cov-2 Infection Admitted to Acute Care Geriatric Wards. J Gerontol A Biol Sci Med Sci. 2021 Feb 25;76(3):e4-e12.
- Eroglu SE, Ademoglu E, Baslilar S, Aksel G, Eker A, Algın A, et al. Can 1st and 6th month pulmonary function test follow-ups give an idea about the long-term respiratory effects of COVID-19 pneumonia? Rev Assoc Med Bras (1992). 2022 Feb;68(2):183-190.
- Ranucci M, Ballotta A, Di Dedda U, Bayshnikova E, Dei Poli M, Resta M, et al. The procoagulant pattern of patients with COVID-19 acute respiratory distress syndrome. J Thromb Haemost 2020 Apr 17. doi: 10.1111/jth.14854.
- Unuvar A. COVID-19 and Coagulopathy. Sağlık Bilimlerinde İleri Araştırmalar Dergisi 2020; 3(Suppl.1): S53-S62. https:// doi.org/10.26650/JARHS2020-S1-0007

Review article Eurasian Journal of Critical Care

Molnupiravir, a New Antiviral Drug for the Treatment of COVID-19

Ali Saritas¹

¹ Department of Emergency Medicine. Prof. Dr. Cemil Tascioglu City Hospital, Istanbul, Turkey

Abstract

The coronavirus disease first appeared in Wuhan, China in late December 2019 and spread very quickly to many countries around the world. A lot of antiviral drugs have been involved in treating COVID-19. Molnupiravir was the first oral antiviral drug and is a drug with anti-RNA polymerase effect and is still used today as an option in the treatment of patients with coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19). . In this review, we aimed to discuss the mechanism of action, safety, efficacy and clinical studies of molnupiravir in the treatment of patients with coronavirus disease.

Keywords: Pandemic, SARS-CoV-2, COVID-19, Molnupiravir

ABSTRACT

There is currently no definitive effective antiviral treatment for COVID-19, but many antiviral drugs have been studied since the first day of the pandemic and administered to patients for the treatment of Coronavirus, despite preliminary or conflicting results from clinical trials. In December 2021, based on the positive results of the MOVe-OUT trial, which was recently published in the New England Journal, it provided a license for molnupiravir, which has been approved and launched in many countries for use in groups of seriously ill patients at high risk of coronavirus disease 2019. Molnupiravir, a new oral antiviral drug, has recently received emergency use authorization (EUA) in the US, UK and India. Molnupiravir, administered orally; A major phase 3 clinical trial for coronavirus disease 2019 patients has delivered significant clinical benefits. (1) It was also the first oral antiviral agent approved for the treatment of coronavirus. We aimed to review and summarize current information about Molnupiravir, the new antiviral drug for COVID-19.

Pathophysiology of Covid 19

Coronaviruses have four main structural proteins, including spike, membrane, envelope, and nucleocapsid proteins. Coronaviruses invade the host cell through interaction between the spike protein and host cell receptors such as angiotensin-converting enzyme 2 and CD147. (2,3) RdRp is involved in Coronavirus replication in host cells and causes the production of Coronavirus with high mutagenicity and diversity. (4) After the first exposure, the immune system is triggered by cytotoxic cells, antibodies and interferons. In the later stages of the coronavirus, alveolar infiltration of T cells, neutrophils and macrophages causes the formation of cytokines such as interleukin (IL)-1, IL-6 and tumor necrosis factor-alpha. Cytokine storming leads to acute respiratory distress syndrome (ARDS) and multiple organ dysfunction. (4) Hyperinflammatory is also associated with the hypercoagulable state through overexpression of the tissue factor in the clotting cascade.

The mechanism of action of molnupiravir in COVID-19 In plasma, molnupyravir is converted by host esterases to the active nucleoside analogue (EIDD-1931). EIDD-1931 has been noted to inhibit a number of viruses, including Chikungunya virus, Venezuelan equine Encephalitis virus, Respiratory Syncytial virus, Norovirus, Influenza A and B viruses, Ebola virus and human Coronaviruses. EIDD-1931 spreads through several tissues and converts into the form of triphosphate. RdRp uses NHC triphosphate as the substrate instead of citidine-triphosphate and urine-triphosphate, which leads to the production of a mutated RNA. Molnupiravir is a more desirable electron donor, which

Corresponding Author: Ali Sarıdas e-mail: dralisaridas@hotmail.com Received: 01.05.2022 • Revision: 08.09.2022 • Accepted: 06.11.2022 DOI: 10.55994/ejcc.1112050 ©Copyright by Emergency Physicians Association of Turkey -Available online at https://dergipark.org.tr/tr/pub/ejcc **Cite this article as:** Saritas A. Molnupiravir, a New Antiviral Drug for the Treatment of COVID-19. Eurasian Journal of Critical Care. 2022;4(3): 116-118

changes the mandatory conditions for infectiousness. EIDD-1931 appears to affect the mitochondrial function of viruses, but in vitro studies have not shown a significant toxicity effect on mitochondrial function. (5) Molnupiravir inhibits the RdRp enzyme of SARS-CoV-2 and causes various errors in RNA virus replication. (6) In other words, molnupiravirlike remdesivir may reduce the pathogenesis and replication of coronaviruses. The results of the placement study showed that the limited mutation zone in the drug structure can cause inhibitory effects on the appearance of mutations associated with drug resistance of molnupiravir. Therefore, molnupiravir may be effective in treating remdesivirresistant patients. (7)

It leads to the fact that viruses turn to molnupiravir instead of cytidine, leading to an error in the formation of RNA chains. Viruses with faulty RNA cannot infect cells (4). Molnupiravir is an analogue of a natural nucleoside molecule called cytidine. In hamster studies, the combination of molnupiravir with favipiravir has been shown to give superior results than its use alone in COVID-19-infected animals (4). The purpose of this article is to update our recent systematic review of molnupiravir and to give some practical tips and tricks regarding the use of molnupiravir for COVID-19 patients. Molnupiravir, which has also been used since October 15, 2021; We also examined its effectiveness compared to other drugs for the Coronavirus.

Clinical Studies

Phase 1 and phase 2 studies with molnupiravir have been concluded. Phase 3 studies are ongoing in different countries. The Phase 1 study was conducted in sixtyfive healthy volunteers and there were no problems with absorption and distribution in the body, and side effects

Table 1: Effects of the antiviral drug Molnupiravir

of headaches and diarrhea were seen in a very small group of participants. It is better tolerated than placebo (4). In the Phase 2 study, doses of 200, 400, 600, and 800 mg were given over 5.5 days. The rate of patients with virus positivity on day 3 was 20% in molnupiravir, 28% in the placebo group, 0% in the drug group on day 5 and 24% in the placebo group. In addition, all doses of the molnupiravir virus became negative on the 5th day. These results suggest that molnupiravir will rapidly reduce viral load in outpatients. (4). Phase 3 studies are ongoing in many countries. The results are expected to be announced in a few months. (4).

Application Method

Molnupiravir can be prescribed only by doctors to groups of mild to moderate patients. the recommended dose for those over 18 years of age is to take an 800 mg capsule of molnupiravir twice a day for 5 days, with or without food. Covid Tell patients that if they forget to take a dose of molnupiravir and the dose is usually within 10 hours of being taken, the patient should take this dose as soon as possible and continue the normal dosing schedule. If a patient misses a dose for more than 10 hours, the patient should not take the missed dose and instead compensate for the next dose at the regularly scheduled time. The patient is advised not to give two doses to compensate for a missed dose (8,9).

Side effect

Molnupiravir has been observed to cause cell death, mutations, does not cause serious side effects in liver cell lines and in animal studies. (4). The most common adverse reactions (incidence $\geq 1\%$) were nausea, vomiting, enteritis and dizziness, but similar to placebo. (8.9).

	-
Alternative names	Lagevrio; EIDD-2801; MK-4482
Class	Antivirals; esters; hydroxylamines; pyrimidinones; ribonucleosides; small molecules
Mechanism of action	Viral replication inhibitors
Route of administration	Oral
Pharmacodynamics	Molnupiravir is hydrolysed to N-hydroxycytidine (NHC) which is phosphorylated to pharmacologically active N-hydroxycytidine triphosphate. Inhibits SARS-CoV-2 replication via viral error induction; robust in vitro and in vivo activity against SARS-CoV-2 retains activity against SARS-CoV-2 variants
Pharmacokinetics of NHC	t_{max} 1.5 h; a high-fat meal reduces C_{max} by 35%; does not bind to plasma proteins $t_{1/2}$ 3.3 h; gender, race, age, and kidney and liver impairment have no clinically relevant effect
Most frequent adverse events	Diarrhoea, nausea, dizziness, headache
ATC codes	
WHO ATC code	J05A-X (other antivirals)
EphMRA ATC code	J5B9 (antivirals, others)
Chemical name	[(2R, 3S, 4R, 5R)-3,4-dihydroxy-5-[4-(hydroxyamino)-2-oxopyrimidin-1-yl]oxolan-2-yl]methyl 2-methylpropanoate

High risk group:

- 1. Over sixty years of age,
- 2. Patients with active malignancy,
- 3. Recipients of Kcell transplantation, patients withecological diseases
- 4. Patients with chronic kidney disease,
- 5. Patients with chronic liver disease,
- 6. Patients with immune-mediated inflammatory disorders (HIV/AIDS, organ transplant patients)
- 7. Some rare neurological conditions,
- 8. All patients with Down syndrome, sickle cell anemia,
- Patients with obesity body mass index [BMI] ≥30 kg/m², It is contraindicated to patients who develop an allergy to the 10th drug due to the high risk.

Mild-to-moderate risk group: (10)

- 1. Fever, shortness of breath or hypoxia without upper respiratory symptoms
- Patients with shortness of breath who have an exertion seizure, a respiratory rate of 20-≥30 beats per minute and/or a heart rate of <90-≥125 beats/minute <,
- 3. SpO₂ or additional oxygen >93% in room air
- 4. Patients without shortness of breath, respiratory failure, shock or multiple organ dysfunction/insufficiency at rest constitute the mild-to-moderate group.

Can we use Molnupiravir in pregnancy and nursing mothers?

Molnupiravir is not recommended for use during pregnancy. When considering molnupiravir for a pregnant individual, the health care provider who prescribes it should tell the pregnant individual about the known and potential benefits and potential risks of using molnupiravir during pregnancy. Breastfeeding during treatment with molnupiravir and for 4 days after the last dose is contraindicated. A breastfeeding individual may consider interrupting breastfeeding and expressing breast milk during treatment and for 4 days after the last dose of molnupiravir. (8)

The end:

Collectively, based on the evidence currently available, molnupiravir appears to be a highly effective agent in reducing the composition of death and hospitalization or death in high-risk adult patients with COVID-19 at a relatively low cost. The role of molnupiravirin is available orally at a lower cost, especially in outpatient settings. Welldesigned randomized clinical trials are needed to confirm the therapeutic effects of molnupiravir in patients with Coronavirus in the future.

Application

- Jayk Bernal, A. et al. N. English J. Med. https://doi.org/10.1056/ NEJMoa2116044 (2021).
- Woolhouse ME, Brierley L., McCaffery C., Lycett S. Assessment of the epidemic potential of RNA and DNA viruses. Emergency Infection Disc. 2016; 22 :2037–2044. [PMC free article] [PubMed] [Google Scholar]
- Shu B., Gong P. Structural basis of viral RNA-dependent RNA polymerase catalysis and translocation. Proc Natl Acad Sci USA A. 2016; 113:E4005–E4014. [PMC free article] [PubMed] [Google Scholar]
- 4. Gorbalenya AE, Pringle FM, Zeddam JL, Luke BT, Cameron CE, Kalmakoff J., Hanzlik TN, Gordon KH, Ward VK Palm subdomain-based active site is found internally in viral RNA-dependent RNA polymerases of an ancient lineage. Allowed. J Mol Biol. 2002; 324:47-62. [PMC free article] [PubMed] [Google Scholar]
- De Clercq E., Li G. Antiviral drugs approved in the last 50 years. Clin Microbiol Rev. 2016; 29 :695–747. [PMC free article] [PubMed] [Google Scholar]
- Jordheim LP, Durantel D., Zoulim F., Dumontet C. Advances in the development of nucleoside and nucleotide analogues for cancer and viral diseases. Nat Rev Drug Diskov. 2013; 12 :447-464. [PubMed] [Google Scholar]
- Jordan PC, Stevens SK, Deval J. Nucleocytes for the treatment of respiratory RNA virus infections. Antivir Chemical Chemotherapy. 2018; 26 [PMC free articles] [PubMed] [Google Scholar]
- 17. Giry C., Roquebert B., Li-Pat-Yuen G., Gasque P., Jaffar-Bandjee MC Advanced detection of[®] genus-specific alphavirus using a general TaqMan test. BMC Microbiology. 2017; 17 :164. [PMC free article] [PubMed] [Google Scholar]
- 9. Forrester NL, Wertheim JO, Dugan VG, Auguste AJ, Lin D., Adams AP, Chen R., Gorchakov R., Leal G., Estrada-Franco JG, et al. Evolution and spread of the complex alphavirus of Venezuelan horse encephalitis in the Americas. PLoS Negl Trop Dis. 2017; 11 [PMC free articles] [PubMed] [Google Scholar]
- Bestetti RB, Furlan-Daniel R., Silva VMR Pharmacological treatment of mild to moderate COVID-19 patients: A comprehensive review. int. J. Environment. Res. Asst. Public health. 2021;18:7212. doi: 10.3390/ijerph18137212. - DOI - PMC - PubMed